
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY –AUGUST 1, 2017 – 6:00 PM 

EVANSDALE CITY HALL 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll call 
 

4. Approval of the August 1, 2017 agenda 
 

5. Approval of the Consent Agenda – All items listed under the consent agenda will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a request is made prior to the time Council votes 
on the motion 

 
a. Approval of July 18, 2017 regular meeting minutes 
 
b. Liquor License Renewals: 

i. Pronto – BC0028905 - Effective 9/15/2017 

ii. Casey’s #1084 (3601 Lafayette Rd.) - BC0012698 – Effective 9/4/2017 

iii. The Watering Hole – LC0042852 – Effective 8/22/2017 

c. Request from Jan Nichols to hold “Forever Young 5K Fun run/walk” in Evansdale on September 
16, 2017 
 
 

6. New Liquor License – Evansdale Amvet Post #31 – one-day event only, Class A Liquor License 
 

7. Appointments 
a. Library Board – Dick Clements with term ending 6-30-2020 
 

8. Resolution 6107 authorizing payment of bills and transfers 
 
9. Public Hearing-2017 Street Patching and Maintenance Project 

 
10. Resolution 6108 approving the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, cost estimate, and accepting 

low bid for the project in the amount of $465,936.05 to Vieth Construction of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
authorizing Mayor to sign said documents for the 2017 Street Patching and Maintenance Project 
 

11. Discussion/Update: Waste Water plant permit 
 

12. Resolution 6109 Resolution authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with Cedar Falls 
Lutheran Home and fixing a date for a hearing as September 5, 2017 on the proposed issuance of conduit 
revenue bonds or notes 
 

13. Request to dispose of reclaimed asphalt to Lucas Asphalt Company 
 

14. Request from Brian Wirtz, Building Inspector, to participate in the Storm Water Management Educational 
Program as part of the Cedar Valley Watershed Project in an amount not to exceed $411.88 for FY18 
 



15. Request from Public Works Director to purchase a remanufactured back-up blower for Waste Water plant in 
the amount of $3,426 
 

16. Request from Public Works Director to have annual levee treatment completed by Turf Pro in the amount of 
$3,097.50 
 

17. Request from Mayor to have asbestos removed from 3547-3553 Lafayette Rd. in an amount not to exceed 
$7,878 
 

18. Request from Police Chief to purchase a car camera with GTSB Funds in the amount of $4,025 
 

19. Ordinance 654 amending Chapter 52, Subsection, Weeds of the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing 
the language and definitions, third reading 
 

20. Ordinance 655 amending Chapter 136, Subsection, Sidewalk Regulations, of the Evansdale Code of 
Ordinances by changing the language and definitions, third reading 
 

21. Ordinance 656 amending the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by adding Chapter 48, Fireworks, second 
reading 
 

22. Ordinance 657 Mayors Compensation from $48,430 annually to $49,641 effective January 1, 2018 and 
$52,023.77 effective July 1, 2018, first reading 
 

23. Discussion: Meyer’s Lake Retaining Wall Options 
 

24. Discussion: Open Meeting Laws - Anonymous complaint filed with Iowa Public Information Board  
 

25. Public discussion: non-agenda items  
 
26. Mayor/Council Reports 
 
27. Adjournment 



CITY HALL 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, JULY 18, 2017 

CITY COUNCIL  
DOUG FAAS, MAYOR, PRESIDING 

 
The City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa met in regular session, according to law, the rules of said 
Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the Council Chambers of City Hall of Evansdale, 
Iowa at 6:00 P.M. on the above date. Council members present in order of roll call: Seible, Nichols, Walker, 
Loftus, and Dewater. Quorum present. 
 
Nichols/Loftus to approve the July 18, 2017 agenda. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Walker/Loftus to approve the following items on the July 18, 2017 Consent Agenda: a. Approval of July 5, 
2017 regular meeting minutes b. Accept and place on file the minutes and reports from the following 
Departments, Boards, and Commissions (n/a = not available):  Ambulance & Fire Report (June), Building 
Inspection Report (June), Clerk/Treasurer Report (June), Code Enforcement Report (June), Evansdale 
Municipal Housing (June), Library (June), Parks & Rec Dept. (June), Planning & Zoning (June), Police 
Dept. (June), Storm Water Commission (n/a), and Water Works (June). Roll call vote: Ayes-Five. 
 
Loftus/Dewater to approve Resolution 6105 setting the date for sale of General Obligation Corporate 
Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A and Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017B and 
authorizing the use of a preliminary official statement in connection therewith. Maggie Burger with Speer 
Financial discussed the preliminary official statement, what she has seen with finance rates, and the date 
for sale of general obligation corporate purpose bonds. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five. 
 
Loftus/Seible to approve request from Fire Chief authorizing repairs to fire truck to include air brakes and 
replacement of several batteries in an amount not to exceed $2,015. Ayes-Three. Motion carried.  
 
Walker/Seible to approve Resolution 6106 authorizing payment of bills and transfers. Roll call vote: Ayes-
Five.  
 
Dewater/Walker to approve request from Evansdale Youth Sports Association for fireworks permit for July 
26, 2017 on property located at Evansdale Youth Sports Complex. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Loftus/Walker to approve request from Police Chief to purchase 2017 Ford Explorer Police vehicle from 
Charles Garbus Ford in the amount of $29,486.50 as budgeted for FY18. Councilman Seible questioned the 
cost for the graphic wrap. Chief Jensen responded that he hasn’t received a quote yet. Ayes-Five. Motion 
carried. 
 
Seible/Walker to approve request from Police Chief to purchase new equipment from Racom in an amount 
of $8,706 as budgeted for FY18. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Seible/Walker to approve request from Police Chief to dispose of 2008 Crown Vic in an amount of $1,000. 
Motion failed for lack of vote. The council requested the vehicle be listed on eBay. 
 
Seible/Walker to approve request from Public Works Director to make necessary repairs to Lafayette Road 
between Knudson Dr. and Heather Ave. in an amount not to exceed $3,150. Councilman Seible questioned 
if the city would repair the other portion of Lafayette at the same time. The Mayor responded no. Ayes-
Five. Motion carried. 
 
Dewater to approve the request to replace light fixtures in Library as quoted by Black Hawk Electric in an 
amount not to exceed $11,970 as budgeted for FY18 (Rebate from MidAmerican Energy in the amount of 
$2,100). Councilman Nichols questioned the cost. Councilman Seible requested an additional quote. 



Motion failed for lack of second. 
 
Loftus/Walker to approve request to install 3 handicap access automatic door operators at City Hall in an 
amount not to exceed $6,255 as budgeted for FY18. Mayor Faas stated ADA compliance. Ayes-Five. 
Motion carried. 
 
Walker/Dewater to authorize Mayor to sign Memorandum of Understanding and grant application with 
INRCOG for grant writing services for REAP grant for the Meyers Lake Shoreline Rehabilitation Project, 
Phase II in an amount not to exceed $1,000. Mayor Faas stated that the second phase will include the lake 
wall at Meyers Lake. Tom Nichols, 616 Grand Blvd., questioned if the street department could repair the 
wall. Mayor Faas responded no. Councilman Seible wasn’t in favor of the project. Ayes-Three. Nays-Two 
(Seible, Nichols). Motion carried. 
 
Seible/Walker to approve request from Public Works Director to purchase repair parts for the i380 flood 
lift gate from Waterman Industries in the amount of $2,763 with freight not to exceed $600. Councilman 
Nichols questioned if the flood gates are maintained on a regular schedule. Chris Schares, Public Works 
Director, responded yes. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Seible/Walker to approve request from Public Works Director to repair hard drive on pump #2 at Arbutus 
lift station in the amount of $3,110. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 
 
Loftus/Dewater to approve Ordinance 654 amending Chapter 52, Subsection, Weeds of the Evansdale Code 
of Ordinances by changing the language and definitions, in its second reading. Roll call vote: Ayes- 
Five.  
 
Seible/Loftus to approve Ordinance 655 amending Chapter 136, Subsection, Sidewalk Regulations, of the 
Evansdale Code of Ordinances by changing the language and definitions, in its second reading. Roll call 
vote: Ayes-Five. 
 
Loftus/Seible to approve Ordinance 656 amending the Evansdale Code of Ordinances by adding Chapter 
48, Fireworks, in its first reading. Mayor Faas discussed being consistent with the cities of Waterloo and 
Cedar Falls on our fireworks ordinance, which would amend the current ordinance by changing the start 
time from nine to noon on the days they are allowed. Councilman Dewater stated that we could also ban 
them completely. Mayor Faas read a statement from Chief Trelka, Waterloo Police Dept. stating a complete 
band would leave the department overwhelmed by firework calls. Mark Atkins, 909 3rd Ave., wasn’t in 
favor of allowing fireworks. Loraine Atkins, 625 River Forest Rd., stated that ordinance changes should be 
published in the paper to let the public know. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five. 
 
Public discussion: non-agenda items. John Peverill, 343 East End Ave., stated that the city needs to be 
careful when listing merchandise on eBay. Loraine Atkins, 625 River Forest Rd., questioned what the city 
spent acquiring the two properties on Lafayette Road. Mayor Faas responded that the price was discussed 
in an open meeting and the information was given to the Courier, but wasn’t printed. He also stated the 
purchase information as follows: purchase of 3573 Lafayette Road was $120,000, just short of $1,000 for 
asbestos testing and under $1,000 to have asbestos removed, and $17,500 for the demolition of the building. 
Purchase of 3547-3553 Lafayette Road was $99,000, plus $20,000 relocation fees; just short of $1,000 for 
asbestos testing and just short of $8,000 for asbestos removal. The city hasn’t sought bids for the demolition, 
but would expect it to be about the same as 3573 Lafayette Road. Mark Atkins, 909 3rd Ave., stated that 
fireworks have landed in an Oak tree in the heights. He also questioned if we are following the building 
ordinance for sprinkler systems in local businesses. Mayor Faas responded that we are following the 
international building code; industrial buildings must be sprinkled and commercial buildings with a certain 
square footage are also required. Mr. Atkins also stated that the drainage design engineered in front of his 
house is not acceptable. The Mayor stated that he would have the engineer get a hold of him.   
 



Mayor/Council Reports: Mayor Faas discussed project updates, siren testing 7/20/17; Eilers will be out on 
August 1st, will start marketing soon. Councilman Seible questioned the curb replacement at 375 Wema 
and the issue with the easement and why it hasn’t been addressed. Mayor Faas responded that on several 
occasions he had talked with Smitty and will discuss it again with him. Councilman Seible stated that he 
checked with the state auditor on passing a resolution to amend the city code of ordinance regarding the 
removal of city owned trees and they stated it wasn’t legal and he wanted the resolution rescinded. 
Councilman Nichols stated a resolution can’t supersede an ordinance. Mayor Faas responded that the point 
of the resolution was to give the street crew, as time allowed, the authority to remove trees. Mark Atkins, 
909 3rd Ave., questioned handicap access on the Grand Blvd. sidewalk project. Mayor Faas responded that 
it was inspected by the DOT. Councilman Dewater stated that the council chose not to make repairs to the 
Bellefontain section of Grand Blvd. Seible stated to council that he wanted their support to finish the bridge 
project at Meyers Lake. Tom Nichols, 616 Grand Blvd., stated that the project has been delayed as the 
engineer has been unresponsive. Councilman Dewater questioned why the park board didn’t hire their own 
engineer. Nichols responded that he wasn’t aware he could hire an outside engineer. Seible stated that he 
would like Jerry Shoff to attend the next meeting and explain to council the progress of the bridge project.   
 
There being no further discussion, Dewater/Loftus to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 p.m. Motion carried.  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
Doug Faas, Mayor     DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Evansdale Amvet Post #31

Name of Business (DBA): Carl Letney Amvet Post #31

Address of Premises: 706 Colleen Ave

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 5070700
00

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 234-9688

Mailing 
Address:

706 Colleen Avenue

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 507070000

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Gary Sauser

Phone: (319) 269-1155 Email 
Address:

amvetpost31@aol.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 75127 Federal Employer ID 
#:

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 07/22/2017  Policy Expiration Date 07/22/2018  

Insurance Company: Integrity Insurance

Effective Date: 07/22/2017  

Expiration Date: 07/21/2018  

Classification
:

Class A Liquor License (LA) (Private Club)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class A Liquor License (LA) (Private Club)

Outdoor Service

david cummings

First Name: david Last Name: cummings

City: evansdale State: Iowa Zip: 50707

Position: commander

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Gary Sauser

First Name: Gary Last Name: Sauser

City: Evansdale State: Iowa Zip: 50707

Position: Finance Officer

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LA0000332 



Policy Effective Date: 07/22/2017  Policy Expiration 
Date:

07/22/2018  

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

08/12/2017  Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

08/12/2017  

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:





License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: J's Enterprises, Inc.

Name of Business (DBA): Pronto Market

Address of Premises: 3452 Lafayette Road

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 232-8201

Mailing 
Address:

3452 Lafayette Road

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Frederick Jones

Phone: (319) 232-8201 Email 
Address:

gkentjones@yahoo.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 137684 Federal Employer ID 
#:

42-1351889

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration Date

Insurance Company: DAKOTA FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

Effective Date: 09/15/2017  

Expiration Date: 09/14/2018  

Classification
:

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Sunday Sales

Frederick Jones

First Name: Frederick Last Name: Jones

City: Waterloo State: Iowa Zip: 50701

Position: President

% of Ownership: 50.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Glenda Jones

First Name: Glenda Last Name: Jones

City: Waterloo State: Iowa Zip: 50701

Position: Vice President

% of Ownership: 50.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 BC0028905 



Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration 
Date:
Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Casey's Marketing Company

Name of Business (DBA): Casey's General Store #1084

Address of Premises: 3601 Lafayette

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 5070700
00

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 235-3002

Mailing 
Address:

PO Box 3001

City
:

Ankeny Zip: 500218045

)

Contact Person

Name
:

JESSICA FISHER, Store Operations

Phone: (515) 446-6404 Email 
Address:

JESSICA.FISHER@caseys.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Publicly Traded Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 184278 Federal Employer ID 
#:

42-1435913

Effective Date: 09/04/2017  

Expiration Date: 09/03/2018  

Classification
:

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Sunday Sales

Michael Richardson

First Name: Michael Last Name: Richardson

City: Pleasant Hill State: Iowa Zip: 50327

Position: President

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: No

42-0935283 Casey's General 
Stores, Inc.
First Name: 42-0935283 Last Name: Casey's General Stores, Inc.

City: Ankeny State: Iowa Zip: 50021-804

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: No

JOHN SOUPENE

First Name: JOHN Last Name: SOUPENE

City: ANKENY State: Iowa Zip: 50023

Position: Vice President

 BC0012698 



Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration 
Date:
Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

Insurance Company: First Western Insurance

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Julia L Jackowski

First Name: Julia L Last Name: Jackowski

City: Urbandale State: Iowa Zip: 50322

Position: Assistant Secretary

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

James Pistillo

First Name: James Last Name: Pistillo

City: Urbandale State: Iowa Zip: 50323

Position: Treasurer

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: JD'S WATERING HOLE, LLC

Name of Business (DBA): The Watering Hole

Address of Premises: 3420 Lafayette Rd 

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

State
:

IA

County: Black Hawk

Business 
Phone:

(319) 226-6303

Mailing 
Address:

3420 Lafayette Rd 

City
:

Evansdale Zip: 50707

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Joann Price

Phone: (319) 290-1118 Email 
Address:

jsp061977@yahoo.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: 528591 Federal Employer ID 
#:

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 08/22/2017  Policy Expiration 
Date:

08/22/2018  

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

Insurance Company: Specialty Risk of America

Effective Date: 08/22/2017  

Expiration Date: 08/21/2018  

Classification
:

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Sunday Sales

Joann Price

First Name: Joann Last Name: Price

City: State: Iowa Zip: 50667

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0042852 





        RESOLUTION  6107
    A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, THAT  

 THE FOLLOWING BILLS BE PAID AND THE TRANSFERS ARE HEREBY ALLOWED.

ADVANCED SYSTEMS FD-COPIER CONTRACT 35.28   
ARROW INTERNATIONAL FD-MEDICAL SUPPLIES 59.82    
AUTO PLUS SR-GREASE GUN-TRMT PLT MAINT 92.99    

SR-GREASE GUN-BLOWER 27.83    
TOTAL: 120.82  

BENTON'S SAND & GRAVEL RU-CONCRETE BLKS-MTPL LOCATIONS 935.00  
BLACK HAWK CO PD-FY18 1ST HALF CJIS 13,650.00     
B.H. ELECTRICAL RU-INSTL PWR-WSHR/DRYER 811.72      

SR-PUMPS 1&2@TIMBER CREEK 137.50      
TOTAL: 949.22  

BLACK HAWK RENTAL RU-BROOM SKID/SWEEP BIKE TRAIL 100.62  
BLACKHAWK WASTE DISPOSAL JULY GARBAGE/RECYCLE 16,776.72     

JULY GARBAGE/RECYCLE 3,883.50   
TOTAL: 20,660.22     

BLAZEK CORP SR-7/13 REMOVE BLWR MOTOR 637.50  
SR-7/19 REPLACE BLWR MOTOR 637.50  
SR-FRT TO REPLC BLWR MOTOR 458.68  
TOTAL: 1,733.68   

CAMPBELL SUPPLY RU-GREASE GUN HOSE 27.69    
SR-TEMP LASER/CK MOTOR TEMP 105.38  
TOTAL: 133.07  

CENTURY LINK SR-INTERNET 78.99    
CGA 2017 ST MAINT & PATCHING 11,343.00     

RFR RECON 3,097.70   
FLOOD CONTROL ELK RUN CREEK 1,174.55   
2017 STREET REHAB 3,808.22   
COLLEEN ST RECON 7,990.15   
EVANSDALE GENERAL ENGINEERING 594.50      
TOTAL: 28,008.12     

COURIER PY-6/28 MINS & BILLS 81.78    
PY-7/5 MINS & BILLS 123.84  
TOTAL: 205.62  

CREATIVE IMPACT PY-BUSINESS CARDS 50.00    
PY-BUSINESS CARDS/SIGNS 100.00  
PY-BUSINESS CARDS/NAME PLATE 40.00    
RU-NO SMOKING SIGNS 50.00    
TOTAL: 240.00  

D & D TIRE RU-STEAR TIRES #72 770.00  
DIGITAL ALLY PD-CAR CAMERA-GTSB 4,025.00   
D,B,S&H, PLC PD-LEGAL FEES 35.00   

PY-LEGAL FEES 1,732.50   
TOTAL: 1,767.50   

EASTMAN, JULIE RMBRS TRAVEL-EASTMAN 200.77  
EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRD FD-MEDICAL SUPPLIES 8.18      
I.A.P.M.O. BI-FY18 IA MEMBERSHIP 150.00      
I.N.R.C.O.G. PY-COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RVW 4,800.00   
ILLOWA RU-CRACK SEALING/VARIOUS RDS 37,554.30     
LJ'S WELDING & FAB SR-BASKET RPR-ARBUTUS 43.25   
MEDIACOM BI-INTERNET 41.18   

CH-INTERNET 41.18   
RU-INTERNET 41.18   
RU-INTERNET 41.18   
TOTAL: 164.72  
RU-SHOP SUPPLIES 99.01    
APRIL-JUNE 2017 SUBSIDY 3,704.00   
RU-BELT-HUSTLER MOWER 78.57   

MENARDS
MET TRANSIT 
OUTDOOR & MORE
P & K MIDWEST RU-HUB-LANDPRIDE MOWER 74.24   

RU-SPARE HUBS-LAND PRIDE MOWER 314.74      
TOTAL: 388.98  

PATHWAYS BEHAVIORAL SRV FY18 CONTRIBUTION 2,411.00   
PETTY CASH - POLICE PD-RMBRSE-SUPPLIES 14.51   

PD-RMBRSE-POSTAGE 39.35   
TOTAL: 53.86    

SCOT'S SUPPLY CO RU-STEEL HYDRO LINE-#54 16.00    
SIMPLEXGRINNELL PD-FIRE ALARM INSPECTIONS 217.50      

APPROVED BY
CC 6/6/17

APPROVED BY 
CC 5/2/17

PAID BY 
GTSB 
FUNDS



FD-FIRE ALARM INSPECTIONS 217.50  
TOTAL: 435.00  

SPECIALTY TRUCKS & EQ RU-SAFETY INSPCTN #72 968.25  
STAPLES BI-INK 31.99   

PY-PORTABLE HARD DRIVE 80.25   
CH-OFFICE SUPPLIES 61.30   
TOTAL: 173.54  

STOCKS, PHIL GRADE III OPERATOR SRV 2,040.00   
TAPCO RU-SIGNS/BIKE TRAIL 422.40      
THE BODY SHOP FD-RPR #14-DEER INCIDENT 299.30  
THE SHOP AUTO & TRUCK REPAIR SR-REPAIR #44 533.79      
TURFPRO FY18 LEVY TREATMENT 3,097.50   
U.S. CELLULAR BI- CELL PHONE 31.63   

PK-CELL PHONE 36.74   
CH-CELL PHONE 72.12   
RU- CELL PHONE 184.54      
SR- CELL PHONE 53.52   
TOTAL: 378.55  

VERIZON FD-CELL PHONE 42.95    
WEBER PAPER CO PD-KLEENEX & PAPER TOWELS 32.03   

FD-KLEENEX & PAPER TOWELS 32.04   
TOTAL: 64.07    

WINDSTREAM PD-PHONE 104.85  
FD-PHONE 75.95    
LIB-PHONES 39.05    
CH-PHONE 89.50    
EWW-OFFICE 33.08    
RU-PHONE 38.57    
SR-ARBUTUS PHONE 37.07    
SR-LAFAYETTE PHONE 37.07    
SR-EAST END PHONE 37.06   
SR-PLANT PHONE 46.07   
TOTAL: 538.27  

001  GENERAL FUND 32,841.17     
005  STREETS 3,097.50   
110  ROAD USE TAX 53,829.83     
302  2015 CAPITAL PROJECTS 16,070.62     
610  SEWER FUND 5,045.38   
670  LANDFILL/GARBAGE 20,660.22     
740  STORM WATER 594.50  
GRAND TOTAL: 132,139.22   

PREPAYS
81398 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LIB-BOOKS 10.20   

LIB-BOOKS 15.52   
LIB-BOOKS 14.95   
LIB-BOOKS 16.10   
LIB-BOOKS 16.67    
LIB-BOOKS 16.10    
LIB-BOOKS 27.16    
LIB-BOOKS 76.46    
TOTAL: 193.16  

81400 JENSEN, SHANN0N LIB-RMBRSE CAP 1 INVOICE 7.97      
81401 OVERDRIVE, INC FY18 BRIDGES E-BOOK SRV 858.40      
81402 STATE LIBRARY OF IOWA FY18 BRIDGE E-BOOK SRV 59.23   
DRAFT ADVANTAGE ADMINISTRATORS P/R DEDUCT 1,969.32   
81403 AFLAC INSURANCE 60.02   
81404 IBEW LOCAL 288 DUES 122.00  
81405 IOWA ONE CALL JUNE LOCATES 37.80    
81406 IPERS RETIRMENT 6,539.48    
81410 METLIFE DENTAL/VIS/LIFE 2,588.82    
81411 MFPRSI P/R DEDUCT 9,426.05    
81412 POLICE ASSOC P/R DEDUCT 70.00    
81413 TREASURER-ST OF IA P/R DEDUCT 2,969.00    
81414 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 238 DUES 301.00  
81415 VALIC P/R DEDUCT 50.00    
81416 WELLMARK INSURANCE 15,651.37     

PREPAY TOTALS:      40,903.78



JUNE PAYROLL:
EFTPS 20,763.65     
FIRE PAYROLL 2,193.57       
BIWEEKLY PAYROLL 56,404.50     
COUNCIL, PARKS & RESERVES 2,322.59       
TOTAL PAYROLL: 81,684.31     

JULY PAYROLL:
EFTPS 19,769.57     
FIRE PAYROLL 2,377.93       
BIWEEKLY PAYROLL 53,396.85     
TOTAL PAYROLL: 75,544.35     

     PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE,  IOWA, ON THIS 1ST
       DAY OF AUGUST 2017.

                       ATTEST:

          _________________________________________                       ________________________________________
          Doug Faas, Mayor                       DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk







































RESOLUTION 6108 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA APPROVING FINAL PLANS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, AND FORM OF CONTRACT CONCERNING 
THE 2017 STREET PATCHING AND MAINTENANCE PROJECT 
AND ACCEPTING THE LOW BID OF VIETH CONSTRUCTION 
CORPORATION FOR SAID PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Evansdale intends to contract for street patching and 

maintenance of the roadway; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive comments from the public for or against 

the said project, was held at a regular city council meeting on August 1, 2017, the notice 
for said hearing is on file; and 
 

WHEREAS, sealed bids were accepted, reviewed, and tabulated by Clapsaddle-
Garber Associates on behalf of the City for the 2017 Street Patching and Maintenance 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed said tabulation of bids and 

recommends acceptance and award of a contract to the low bidder, Vieth Construction 
Corporation; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Evansdale, Iowa approves the final plans, specifications, and form of contract for said 
project. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Evansdale 

accepts the low bid of Vieth Construction Corporation of Cedar Falls, Iowa in the amount 
of $465,936.05 and award said contract. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Evansdale 

authorizes the Mayor, on behalf of the City of Evansdale, to sign a contract between the 
City and Vieth Construction subject to contractor providing acceptable Insurance 
Certificates. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 1ST DAY OF AUGUST 2017 
 

       ATTEST: 
 
 

____________________________  ___________________________ 
Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



Bidder

Address

Check or Bid Bond

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Excavation, Class 10, Roadway and Borrow CY 258.2 $40.00 $10,328.00 $24.00 $6,196.80 $45.00 $11,619.00 $73.30 $18,926.06 $0.00

2 Excavation, Unsuitable Material CY 10.0 $40.00 $400.00 $35.00 $350.00 $30.00 $300.00 $95.90 $959.00 $0.00

3 Removal of Pavement SY 875.1 $10.00 $8,751.00 $11.00 * $9,626.10 $18.00 $15,751.80 $13.70 $11,988.87 $0.00

9 Removal of Curb SY 96.5 $15.00 $1,447.50 $9.00 $868.50 $18.00 $1,737.00 $9.40 $907.10 $0.00

12 PCC Pavement Patch 10 IN., Class M, < 10 SY SY 7.0 $160.00 $1,120.00 $180.00 $1,260.00 $115.00 $805.00 $198.00 $1,386.00 $0.00

13 PCC Pavement Patch 10 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 86.6 $120.00 $10,392.00 $90.00 $7,794.00 $115.00 $9,959.00 $144.00 $12,470.40 $0.00

14 PCC Pavement Patch 8 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 781.5 $95.00 $74,242.50 $81.00 $63,301.50 $105.00 $82,057.50 $81.30 $63,535.95 $0.00

22 30 IN. Curb and Gutter, PCC LF 54.0 $40.00 $2,160.00 $39.00 $2,106.00 $42.00 $2,268.00 $37.70 $2,035.80 $0.00

27 Granular Base - Class "A" Crushed Stone TN 112.3 $37.50 $4,211.25 $31.00 $3,481.30 $26.00 $2,919.80 $34.80 $3,908.04 $0.00

28 Granular Surfacing - Class "A" Crushed Stone TN 311.0 $37.50 $11,662.50 $30.00 $9,330.00 $34.00 $10,574.00 $25.40 $7,899.40 $0.00

29 Modified Subbase, 12 IN. TN 596.4 $14.00 $8,349.60 $22.00 $13,120.80 $26.00 $15,506.40 $24.40 $14,552.16 $0.00

30 PCC Manhole Boxout EA 1.0 $750.00 $750.00 $850.00 $850.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $822.00 $822.00 $0.00

31 Insert, PCC EA 1.0 $800.00 $800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $343.00 $343.00 $0.00

32 HDPE Subdrain, 4 IN. LF 276.8 $10.00 $2,768.00 $23.00 * $6,366.40 $19.00 $5,259.20 $16.50 $4,567.20 $0.00

33 Subdrain Connection to Ex. Intake EA 2.0 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $287.00 $574.00 $0.00

34 Pavement Markings, Edge Line Left (Yellow) STA 0.4 $2,000.00 $800.00 $865.00 $346.00 $1,000.00 $400.00 $722.00 $288.80 $0.00

35 Pavement Markings, Edge Line Right (White) STA 0.4 $2,000.00 $800.00 $865.00 $346.00 $1,000.00 $400.00 $722.00 $288.80 $0.00

36 Pavement markings, Broken Lane Line (White) STA 0.1 $1,000.00 $100.00 $865.00 $86.50 $1,000.00 $100.00 $722.00 $72.20 $0.00

40 Mobilization LS 1.0 $28,417.65 $28,417.65 $18,500.00 $18,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $49,100.00 $49,100.00 $0.00

41 Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching LS 1.0 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $1,900.00 $1,900.00 $0.00

42 Traffic Control LS 1.0 $30,500.00 $30,500.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $0.00

Division 1 Bid $205,000.00 $151,929.90 $179,806.70 $198,324.78 $0.00

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Excavation, Class 10, Roadway and Borrow CY 138.6 $40.00 $5,544.00 $44.00 $6,098.40 $50.00 $6,930.00 $68.40 $9,480.24 $0.00

2 Excavation, Unsuitable Material CY 3.0 $40.00 $120.00 $86.00 $258.00 $40.00 $120.00 $115.00 $345.00 $0.00

3 Removal of Pavement SY 785.9 $10.00 $7,859.00 $13.50 $10,609.65 $18.00 $14,146.20 $22.60 $17,761.34 $0.00

4 Removal of Paved Driveway SY 19.1 $10.00 $191.00 $76.00 $1,451.60 $18.00 $343.80 $28.70 $548.17 $0.00

13 PCC Pavement Patch 10 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 51.1 $120.00 $6,132.00 $100.00 $5,110.00 $115.00 $5,876.50 $97.20 $4,966.92 $0.00

14 PCC Pavement Patch 8 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 636.8 $95.00 $60,496.00 $81.00 $51,580.80 $105.00 $66,864.00 $86.80 $55,274.24 $0.00

15 PCC Pavement Patch 8 IN., Class M, < 10 SY SY 8.3 $160.00 $1,328.00 $190.00 $1,577.00 $105.00 $871.50 $139.00 $1,153.70 $0.00

16 PCC Pavement Patch 7 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 86.7 $95.00 $8,236.50 $89.00 $7,716.30 $100.00 $8,670.00 $77.50 $6,719.25 $0.00

18 Driveway, PCC, 6 IN. SY 19.1 $65.00 $1,241.50 $119.00 $2,272.90 $94.00 $1,795.40 $172.00 $3,285.20 $0.00

27 Granular Base - Class "A" Crushed Stone TN 262.1 $37.50 $9,828.75 $33.00 $8,649.30 $26.00 $6,814.60 $25.70 $6,735.97 $0.00

30 PCC Manhole Boxout EA 4.0 $750.00 $3,000.00 $850.00 $3,400.00 $1,250.00 $5,000.00 $827.00 $3,308.00 $0.00

31 Insert, PCC EA 1.0 $800.00 $800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $974.00 $974.00 $0.00

37 Pavement Markings, Centerline (Yellow) STA 0.2 $1,000.00 $200.00 $865.00 $173.00 $1,000.00 $200.00 $734.00 $146.80 $0.00

40 Mobilization LS 1.0 $15,223.25 $15,223.25 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $21,800.00 $21,800.00 $0.00

41 Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching LS 1.0 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $0.00

42 Traffic Control LS 1.0 $12,800.00 $12,800.00 $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $0.00

Division 2 Bid $135,000.00 $117,846.95 $135,632.00 $137,598.83 $0.00

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Excavation, Class 10, Roadway and Borrow CY 175.1 $40.00 $7,004.00 $34.00 $5,953.40 $48.00 $8,404.80 $64.80 $11,346.48 $18.50 $3,239.35

2 Excavation, Unsuitable Material CY 3.0 $40.00 $120.00 $86.00 $258.00 $40.00 $120.00 $260.00 $780.00 $37.00 $111.00

3 Removal of Pavement SY 984.2 $10.00 $9,842.00 $11.00 $10,826.20 $18.00 $17,715.60 $17.80 $17,518.76 $39.33 * $38,708.59

4 Removal of Paved Driveway SY 9.6 $10.00 $96.00 $48.00 $460.80 $18.00 $172.80 $68.90 $661.44 $32.34 * $310.46

5 Removal of Sidewalk SY 27.3 $12.00 $327.60 $28.00 $764.40 $18.00 $491.40 $17.40 $475.02 $18.89 * $515.70

14 PCC Pavement Patch 8 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 200.5 $95.00 $19,047.50 $82.00 $16,441.00 $109.00 $21,854.50 $83.10 $16,661.55 $72.30 $14,496.15

16 PCC Pavement Patch 7 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 779.3 $95.00 $74,033.50 $75.00 $58,447.50 $100.00 $77,930.00 $88.70 $69,123.91 $62.50 $48,706.25

17 PCC Pavement Patch 7 IN., Class M, < 10 SY SY 4.4 $160.00 $704.00 $281.00 $1,236.40 $100.00 $440.00 $134.00 $589.60 $132.00 $580.80

18 Driveway, PCC, 6 IN. SY 9.6 $65.00 $624.00 $135.00 $1,296.00 $94.00 $902.40 $123.00 $1,180.80 $116.45 * $1,117.92

19 PCC Sidewalk, 6 IN. SY 15.8 $100.00 $1,580.00 $92.00 $1,453.60 $94.00 $1,485.20 $87.20 $1,377.76 $34.75 $549.05

20 PCC Sidewalk, 4 IN. SY 11.5 $75.00 $862.50 $102.00 $1,173.00 $85.00 $977.50 $75.70 $870.55 $26.75 * $307.63

21 Detectable Warnings SF 33.0 $50.00 $1,650.00 $39.00 $1,287.00 $42.00 $1,386.00 $41.50 $1,369.50 $36.36 $1,199.88

27 Granular Base - Class “A” Crushed Stone TN 313.6 $37.50 $11,760.00 $24.00 $7,526.40 $26.00 $8,153.60 $23.20 $7,275.52 $24.00 $7,526.40

30 PCC Manhole Boxout EA 2.0 $750.00 $1,500.00 $850.00 $1,700.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $855.00 $1,710.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00

40 Mobilization LS 1.0 $16,248.90 $16,248.90 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00

41 Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching LS 1.0 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $2,600.00 $2,600.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
42 Traffic Control LS 1.0 $7,600.00 $7,600.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

Division 3 Bid $155,000.00 $120,023.70 $157,783.80 $155,040.89 * $142,569.17

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Excavation, Class 10, Roadway and Borrow CY 27.0 $40.00 $1,080.00 $82.00 $2,214.00 $75.00 $2,025.00 $66.80 $1,803.60 $0.00

2 Excavation, Unsuitable Material CY 3.0 $40.00 $120.00 $76.00 $228.00 $30.00 $90.00 $97.60 $292.80 $0.00

3 Removal of Pavement SY 117.4 $10.00 $1,174.00 $32.00 $3,756.80 $25.00 $2,935.00 $41.60 $4,883.84 $0.00

4 Removal of Paved Driveway SY 7.3 $10.00 $73.00 $64.00 $467.20 $25.00 $182.50 $67.30 $491.29 $0.00

5 Removal of Sidewalk SY 3.7 $12.00 $44.40 $126.00 $466.20 $25.00 $92.50 $38.30 $141.71 $0.00

6 Removal of Structures EA 4.0 $500.00 $2,000.00 $980.00 $3,920.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $585.00 $2,340.00 $0.00

7 Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 12 IN. LF 12.0 $20.00 $240.00 $214.00 $2,568.00 $42.00 $504.00 $14.20 $170.40 $0.00

8 Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 15 IN. LF 4.0 $20.00 $80.00 $220.00 $880.00 $42.00 $168.00 $28.30 $113.20 $0.00

10 Concrete Flume and Footing CY 2.0 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00 $0.00

11 Flowable Mortar CY 5.0 $300.00 $1,500.00 $206.00 $1,030.00 $300.00 $1,500.00 $234.00 $1,170.00 $0.00

15 PCC Pavement Patch 8 IN., Class M, < 10 SY SY 33.4 $160.00 $5,344.00 $114.00 $3,807.60 $110.00 $3,674.00 $111.00 $3,707.40 $0.00

16 PCC Pavement Patch 7 IN., Class M, > 10 SY SY 98.4 $95.00 $9,348.00 $89.00 $8,757.60 $100.00 $9,840.00 $94.70 $9,318.48 $0.00

17 PCC Pavement Patch 7 IN., Class M, < 10 SY SY 3.1 $160.00 $496.00 $368.00 $1,140.80 $110.00 $341.00 $131.00 $406.10 $0.00

18 Driveway, PCC, 6 IN. SY 7.3 $65.00 $474.50 $178.00 $1,299.40 $95.00 $693.50 $101.00 $737.30 $0.00

19 PCC Sidewalk, 6 IN. SY 3.7 $100.00 $370.00 $178.00 $658.60 $95.00 $351.50 $164.00 $606.80 $0.00

21 Detectable Warnings SF 8.0 $50.00 $400.00 $39.00 $312.00 $42.00 $336.00 $42.00 $336.00 $0.00

22 30 IN. Curb and Gutter, PCC LF 23.0 $40.00 $920.00 $43.00 $989.00 $42.00 $966.00 $31.70 $729.10 $0.00

23 Intake, SW-501 EA 3.0 $4,500.00 $13,500.00 $3,100.00 $9,300.00 $3,200.00 $9,600.00 $3,700.00 $11,100.00 $0.00

24 Intake, SW-541 EA 1.0 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $8,800.00 $8,800.00 $0.00

25 Storm Sewer, RCP, 12 IN. LF 12.0 $20.00 $240.00 $220.00 $2,640.00 $100.00 $1,200.00 $71.60 $859.20 $0.00

26 Storm Sewer, RCP, 15 IN. LF 4.0 $25.00 $100.00 $231.00 $924.00 $115.00 $460.00 $73.10 $292.40 $0.00

27 Granular Base - Class “A” Crushed Stone TN 50.9 $37.50 $1,908.75 $57.00 $2,901.30 $26.00 $1,323.40 $24.40 $1,241.96 $0.00

31 Insert, PCC EA 3.0 $800.00 $2,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $900.00 $2,700.00 $0.00

37 Removal and Replacements – 1st Street LS 1.0 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $0.00

38 Exploratory Investigation EA 1.0 $500.00 $500.00 $1,625.00 $1,625.00 $500.00 $500.00 $340.00 $340.00 $0.00

40 Mobilization LS 1.0 $6,987.35 $6,987.35 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $18,100.00 $18,100.00 $0.00

41 Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching LS 1.0 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $0.00
42 Traffic Control LS 1.0 $4,300.00 $4,300.00 $850.00 $850.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $917.00 $917.00 $0.00

Division 4 Bid $65,000.00 $76,135.50 $77,782.40 $79,498.58 $0.00

* denotes math error corrected by engineer

D
iv

is
io

n
 3

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 4

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 3

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 4

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 1

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 2

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 1

 B
id

D
iv

is
io

n
 2

 B
id

5% Bid Bond

Tschiggfrie Excavating

5% Bid Bond

Probable Construction

Vieth Const. Corp.

Cedar Falls, IA

Cost

Engineer's Opinion of 

Bid Tabulation
2017 Street Maintenance and Patching

Evansdale, IA  ~  Bid Date:  7/25/2017  2:00 pm

Granger Const. Inc.

West Union, IA

5% Bid Bond5% Bid Bond

Lodge Construction Inc.

Clarksville, IA Dubuque, IA

July 25, 2017 Prepared By Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. PN 1668.04



From: Heather Thomas
To: Chris Schares; Doug Faas
Cc: Jerry Shoff; William Wright; DeAnne Kobliska
Subject: RE: Evansdale Wastewater Permit
Date: Friday, July 21, 2017 8:21:48 AM
Attachments: 0723001(2017-6-6)_Evansdale_DRAFT_Permit.pdf

0723001(2017-6-6)_Evansdale_Rationale.pdf
Evansdale_Supporting_Documents.pdf

Chris/Doug,
 
I received an email from the DNR listing new WW permits that they have issued and noticed they
have issued a draft of the City of Evansdale’s new wastewater treatment NPDES permit.  (For
reference, I’ve attached some of the documents related to the City’s new WW permit.)
 
Looks like it is pretty straight forward and that they will require the City to install some type of
disinfection.  The two options are a chlorination/dechlorination system or a UV disinfection system. 
If the City installs chlorine disinfection, they will reopen the permit and include total residual
chlorine limits (to be sure the dechlorination is adequate).
 
You are in what is called the “draft comment period”.  This a period in which anyone can submit
comments to the DNR prior to 08/12/17 related to the City’s new permit limits.  Upon conclusion of
the comment period, the DNR will issue a final permit that will include a compliance schedule.  I’d
estimate the final permit will be issued around the first part of September.  I’ve copied the DNR’s
compliance schedule below and then inputted approximate dates in red based on my assumption
that your final permit will be issued in September. Dates subject to change upon DNR’s issuance
 

1. The facility shall make necessary improvements to meet the E.coli limit according to the
following schedule:
 
•  Complete a Self-Assessment Matrix and submit a Work Record Request form to DNR’s
Wastewater Engineering Section by [Insert date of 2 months from permit issuance]. 
November 1, 2017.
The forms and instructions are available on the DNR website at
http://www.iowadnr.gov/InsideDNR/RegulatoryWater/WastewaterConstruction.aspx. 
Questions on the forms
should be directed to either Terry Kirschenman at 515/725-8422 or Emy Liu at 515/725-
8421.  
 
• Submit a Facility Plan by [Insert 6 months from permit issuance date].  March 1, 2018. The
Facility Plan shall be in accordance with Chapter 11.2 of the Iowa Wastewater Facilities
Design Standards adopted April 25, 1979.
 
• Submit progress report by [Insert 12 months from permit issuance date]. September 1,
2018
• Submit final plans and specifications by [Insert 17 months from permit issuance date]. 
February 1, 2019

mailto:HThomas@cgaconsultants.com
mailto:publicworks@cityofevansdale.org
mailto:mayordougfaas@cityofevansdale.org
mailto:JShoff@cgaconsultants.com
mailto:WWright@cgaconsultants.com
mailto:cityclerk@cityofevansdale.org



  


IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
 


National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit 
 


               


 
 


               


  


OWNER NAME & ADDRESS 
 


      


FACILITY NAME & ADDRESS 
 


  


  


CITY OF EVANSDALE  
CITY HALL 
123 N EVANS ROAD 
EVANSDALE, IA 50707 


 


    


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
1212 RIVER FORREST ROAD 
EVANSDALE, IA 50707 
 
Section 1, T88N, R13W 
Black Hawk County 


 


  


           
               


 


IOWA NPDES PERMIT NUMBER: 0723001 
DATE OF ISSUANCE:  
DATE OF EXPIRATION:  


 


  


YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE FOR 
RENEWAL OF THIS PERMIT BY:   
EPA NUMBER: IA0022004  


 


 


               


  


This permit is issued pursuant to the authority of section 402(b) of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C 
1342(b)), Iowa Code section 455B.174, and rule 567-64.3, Iowa Administrative Code.  You are 
authorized to operate the disposal system and to discharge the pollutants specified in this permit in 
accordance with the effluent limitations, monitoring requirements and other terms set forth in this 
permit. 
 
You may appeal any condition of this permit by filing a written notice of appeal and request for 
administrative hearing with the director of this department within 30 days of your receipt of this permit. 
 
Any existing unexpired Iowa operation permit or Iowa NPDES permit previously issued by the 
department for the facility identified above is revoked by the issuance of this permit.  This provision 
does not apply to any authorization to discharge under the terms and conditions of a general permit 
issued by the department or to any permit issued exclusively for the discharge of stormwater. 


 


 


               


  


FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
By __________________________________________ 


 


       


               


   


Libby Atwater 
NPDES Section 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 


 


   


               


     


 


   


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 2 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
  


Outfall No.: 001  DISCHARGE FROM AN ACTIVATED SLUDGE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY. 


Receiving Stream: CEDAR RIVER SLOUGH 
Route of Flow: CEDAR RIVER SLOUGH 
Class G waters are intermittent watercourses and those watercourses which typically flow only for short periods of time following precipitation and whose 
channels are normally above the water table.  These waters do not support a viable aquatic community during low flow and do not maintain pooled 
conditions during periods of no flow. General use waters are protected for livestock and wildlife watering, aquatic life, non-contact recreation, crop 
irrigation, and industrial, agricultural, domestic and other incidental water withdrawal uses. 
 
    


 


  


   


Bypasses from any portion of a treatment facility or from a sanitary sewer collection system designed to carry only sewage are prohibited. 
 


 


   


 


 


 


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 3 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 


 


  


   


Effluent Limitations: 
 


 


  


You are prohibited from discharging pollutants except in compliance with the following effluent limitations: 
 


 


  


The following dates are approximate while Permit is in Draft 
 


 


  


001 DISCHARGE FROM AN ACTIVATED SLUDGE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY.  
Outfall: 001  Effective Dates: Permit Issue Date to Permit Expire Date 


Parameter Season Limit Type Limits 
CBOD5 85% Removal Required 
 Yearly 7 Day Average 40 MG/L     506 LBS/DAY      


 Yearly 30 Day Average 25 MG/L     316 LBS/DAY      
TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 85% Removal Required 
 Yearly 7 Day Average 45 MG/L     569 LBS/DAY      


 Yearly 30 Day Average 30 MG/L     379 LBS/DAY      
ACUTE TOXICITY, CERIODAPHNIA  


 Yearly Daily Maximum 1 NO TOXICITY      


ACUTE TOXICITY, PIMEPHALES  


 Yearly Daily Maximum 1 NO TOXICITY      


DISSOLVED OXYGEN  


 Yearly Minimum 1.0 MG/L      


PH  


 Yearly Maximum 9.0 STD UNITS      


 Yearly Minimum 6.0 STD UNITS      


NITROGEN, TOTAL (AS N) 
 Yearly 7 Day Average 232.2 LBS/DAY 


 Yearly 30 Day Average 380.0 LBS/DAY 
 


 


   


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 4 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 


Outfall: 001  Effective Dates: Permit Issue Date to Permit Expire Date 


Parameter Season Limit Type Limits 
AMMONIA NITROGEN (N)  


 JAN 30 Day Average 39.4 MG/L     498.0 LBS/DAY      


 JAN Daily Maximum 39.4 MG/L     498.0 LBS/DAY      


 FEB 30 Day Average 36.8 MG/L     465.5 LBS/DAY      


 FEB Daily Maximum 36.8 MG/L     465.5 LBS/DAY      


 MAR 30 Day Average 38.1 MG/L     478.6 LBS/DAY      


 MAR Daily Maximum 38.1 MG/L     478.6 LBS/DAY      


 APR 30 Day Average 40.7 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 APR Daily Maximum 40.7 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 MAY 30 Day Average 39.4 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 MAY Daily Maximum 39.4 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 JUN 30 Day Average 27.7 MG/L     274.5 LBS/DAY      


 JUN Daily Maximum 27.7 MG/L     274.5 LBS/DAY      


 JUL 30 Day Average 21.5 MG/L     225.2 LBS/DAY      


 JUL Daily Maximum 21.5 MG/L     225.2 LBS/DAY      


 AUG 30 Day Average 24.2 MG/L     237.9 LBS/DAY      


 AUG Daily Maximum 24.2 MG/L     237.9 LBS/DAY      


 SEP 30 Day Average 25.7 MG/L     249.2 LBS/DAY      


 SEP Daily Maximum 25.7 MG/L     249.2 LBS/DAY      


 OCT 30 Day Average 40.7 MG/L     394.1 LBS/DAY      


 OCT Daily Maximum 40.7 MG/L     394.1 LBS/DAY      


 NOV 30 Day Average 38.1 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 NOV Daily Maximum 38.1 MG/L     322.6 LBS/DAY      


 DEC 30 Day Average 41.4 MG/L     394.1 LBS/DAY      


 DEC Daily Maximum 41.4 MG/L     394.1 LBS/DAY      
 


 


   


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 5 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 


 


Outfall: 001  Effective Dates: 09/01/2020 to 08/31/2022 


Parameter Season Limit Type Limits 
E. COLI  


 MAR Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 APR Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 MAY Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 JUN Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 JUL Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 AUG Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 SEP Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 OCT Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      


 NOV Geometric Mean 126 #/100 ML      
 


 


  


 


 


   


  


 


 


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 6 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 


 


  


   


Monitoring and Reporting Requirements 
 


 


    


(a)  Samples and measurements taken shall be representative of the volume and nature of the monitored wastewater. 
 
(b)  Analytical and sampling methods specified in 40 CFR Part 136 or other methods approved in writing by the department shall be utilized.  Samples collected for 
operational testing need not be analyzed by approved analytical methods; however, commonly accepted test methods should be used. 
 
(c)  You are required to report all data including calculated results needed to determine compliance with the limitations contained in this permit.  The results of any 
monitoring not specified in this permit performed at the compliance monitoring point and analyzed according to 40 CFR Part 136 shall be included in the calculation and 
reporting of any data submitted in accordance with this permit.  This includes daily maximums and minimums and 30-day and 7-day averages for all parameters that 
have concentration (mg/l) and mass (lbs/day) limits.  In addition, flow data shall be reported in million gallons per day (MGD). 
 
(d)  Results of all monitoring shall be recorded on forms provided by, or approved by, the department, and shall be submitted to the appropriate regional field office of 
the department by the fifteenth day following the close of the reporting period.  Your reporting period is on a MONTHLY basis, ending on the last day of each reporting 
period. 
 
(e)  Any records of monitoring activities and results shall include for all samples: the date, exact place and time of the sampling; the dates the analyses were performed; 
who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods used; and the results of such analyses. 
 
(f)  Chapter 63 of the Iowa Administrative Code contains further explanation of these monitoring requirements. 


 


 


    


All dates are approximate while Permit is in Draft 
 


 


    


  


 


  


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 7 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 


Outfall Wastewater Parameter Sample Frequency Sample Type Monitoring Location 
The following monitoring requirements shall be in effect from Permit Issue Date to Permit Expire Date 


001 BIOCHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND 
(BOD5) 


2 TIMES PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE RAW WASTE 


001 FLOW 7/WEEK OR DAILY 24 HOUR TOTAL RAW WASTE 


001 NITROGEN, TOTAL KJELDAHL (AS 
N) 


1 EVERY MONTH 24 HOUR COMPOSITE RAW WASTE 


001 PH 2 TIMES PER WEEK GRAB RAW WASTE 


001 TEMPERATURE                              2 TIMES PER WEEK GRAB RAW WASTE 


001 TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE RAW WASTE 


001 PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL (AS P) 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE RAW WASTE 


001 NITROGEN, TOTAL (AS N) 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE RAW WASTE 


001 CBOD5 2 TIMES PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT PRIOR TO DISINFECTION 


001 TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT PRIOR TO DISINFECTION 


001 ACUTE TOXICITY, CERIODAPHNIA 1 EVERY 12 MONTHS 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 ACUTE TOXICITY, PIMEPHALES 1 EVERY 12 MONTHS 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 AMMONIA NITROGEN (N) 2 TIMES PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 DISSOLVED OXYGEN 2 TIMES PER WEEK GRAB EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 NITROGEN, TOTAL (AS N) 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 PH 2 TIMES PER WEEK GRAB EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL (AS P) 1 TIME PER WEEK 24 HOUR COMPOSITE EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


001 TEMPERATURE                              2 TIMES PER WEEK GRAB EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


The following monitoring requirements shall be in effect from 09/01/2020 to 08/31/2022 


001 E. COLI GEO. MEAN 1/3 
MONTHS 


GRAB EFFLUENT AFTER DISINFECTION 


  


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  


  


 


 


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 8 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 


 


 


   


Special Monitoring Requirements 
 


   


Outfall # Description 
001 AMMONIA NITROGEN (N) 


Ammonia shall be sampled and analyzed using an EPA approved method specified in 40 CFR 136 or using the Timberline Method Ammonia-
001 alternative test procedure. 
NITROGEN, TOTAL (AS N) 
Total Nitrogen is to be calculated as Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) + Nitrate+ Nitrite (as N). TKN and Nitrate+ Nitrite (as N) analysis must be 
conducted per the methods specified in 40 CFR 136. 
E. COLI 
The limit for E. coli of 126 org/100 ml specified in the limits section of this permit for outfall 001 is a geometric mean.  The disinfection season 
is established in the Iowa Administrative Code, Subparagraph 567 IAC 61.3(3)“a”(1), and is in effect from March 15 to November 15.  Any 
disinfection system (chlorine, UV light, etc.) shall be operated to comply with the limit during the entire disinfection season whenever 
wastewater is being discharged from outfall 001.   
The facility must collect and analyze a minimum of five samples in one calendar month during each 3-month period from March 15 to 
November 15. The 3-month periods are March – May, June – August, and September – November. The collection of five samples in each 3-
month period will result in a minimum of 15 samples being collected during a calendar year. For example, for the first 3-month period, the 
operator may choose April as the calendar month to collect the 5 individual E. coli samples to determine compliance with the limits.  The 
operator may also choose the months of March or May as well, as long as each of the 5 samples is collected during a single calendar month.  
The same principle applies to the other two 3-month periods during the disinfection season. The following requirements apply to the individual 
samples collected in one calendar month: 
Samples must be spaced over one calendar month. 
No more than one sample can be collected on any one day. 
There must be a minimum of two days between each sample. 
No more than two samples may be collected in a period of seven consecutive days. 
 
If the effluent has been disinfected using chlorine, ultraviolet light (UV), or any other process intended to disrupt the biological integrity of the 
E. coli, the samples shall be analyzed using the Most Probable Number method found in Standard Method 9223B (Colilert® or Colilert-18® 
made by IDEXX Laboratories, Inc.). If the effluent has not been disinfected the samples  may be analyzed using either the MPN method above 
or EPA Method 1603: Escherichia coli (E. coli) in water by membrane filtration using modified membrane-thermotolerant E. coli agar 
(modified mTEC) or mColiBlue-24® made by the Hach Company.   
 
The geometric mean must be calculated using all valid sample results collected during a month.  The geometric mean formula is as follows: 
Geometric Mean = (Sample one * Sample two * Sample three * Sample four *Sample five…Sample N)^(1/N), which is the Nth root of the 
result of the multiplication of all of the sample results where N = the number of samples.  If a sample result is a less than value, the value 
reported by the lab without the less than sign should be used in the geometric mean calculation. 
The geometric mean can be calculated in one of the following ways: 
Use a scientific calculator that can calculate the powers of numbers. 
Enter the samples in Microsoft Excel and use the function “GEOMEAN” to perform the calculation.  
Use the geometric mean calculator on the Iowa DNR webpage at: http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water-Quality/NPDES-
Wastewater-Permitting/NPDES-Operator-Information/Bacteria-Sampling 


 


  







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 9 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


   


  


 


 


 


 
  


Outfall Number: 001 


Ceriodaphnia and Pimephales Toxicity Effluent Testing 


1.    For facilities that have not been required to conduct toxicity testing by a previous NPDES permit, the initial annual toxicity test shall be conducted 
       within three (3) months of permit issuance. For facilities that have been required to conduct toxicity testing by a previous NPDES permit, the initial 
       annual toxicity test shall be conducted within twelve months (12) of the last toxicity test. 
 
2.    The test organisms that are to be used for acute toxicity testing shall be Ceriodaphnia dubia and Pimephales promelas.  The acute toxicity testing 
       procedures used to demonstrate compliance with permit limits shall be those listed in 40 CFR Part 136 and adopted by reference in rule 567--63.1(1). 
       The method for measuring acute toxicity is specified in USEPA, October 2002,  Methods for Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effluents and  
       Receiving Waters to Freshwater and Marine Organisms, Fifth Edition. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Water, Washington, D.C.,  
       EPA 821-R-02-012. 
         
3.    The diluted effluent sample must contain a minimum of 100.00 % effluent and no more than 0.00 % of culture water. 
 
4.    One valid positive toxicity result will require, at a minimum, quarterly testing for effluent toxicity until three successive tests are determined not to  
       be positive. 
 
5.    Two successive valid positive toxicity results or three positive results out of five successive valid effluent toxicity tests will require a toxicity  
       reduction evaluation to be completed to eliminate the toxicity. 
 
6.    A non-toxic test result shall be indicated as a "1" on the monthly operation report. A toxic test result shall be indicated as a "2" on the monthly 
       operation report. DNR Form 542-1381 shall also be submitted to the DNR field office along with the monthly operation report.  
 
 
                                                                           Ceriodaphnia and Pimephales Toxicity Effluent Limits 
  
       The maximum limit of "1" for the parameters Acute Toxicity, Ceriodaphnia and Acute Toxicity, Pimephales means no positive toxicity 
       results. 
 
       Definition:  "Positive toxicity result" means a statistical difference of mortality rate between the control and the diluted effluent sample.  For more 
                           information see USEPA, October 2002, Methods for Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Freshwater and  
                           Marine Organisms, Fifth Edition, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Water, Washington, D.C., EPA 821-R-02-012. 
 
 
 


  


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 10 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 
 


  


Design Capacity 
 


   


Design: 1 
The design capacity for the treatment works is specified in Construction Permit Number 2002-164-S, issued Friday, April 12, 2002.  
The treatment plant is designed to treat: 
* An average dry weather (ADW) flow of 0.6360 Million Gallons Per Day (MGD). 
* An average wet weather (AWW) flow of 1.5170 Million Gallons Per Day (MGD). 
* A maximum wet weather (MWW) flow of 1.8150 Million Gallons Per Day (MGD). 
* A design 5-day biochemical oxygen demand (BOD5) load of 1109 lbs/day. 
* A design Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) load of 210.00 lbs/day. 
 
 
Operator Certification Type/Grade: WW/III 


 


   


Wastes in such volumes or quantities as to exceed the design capacity of the treatment works or reduce the effluent quality below that specified in the operation 
permit of the treatment works are considered to be a waste which interferes with the operation or performance of the treatment works and are prohibited by rule 
IAC 567-62.1(7). 


 


   


  


 


 


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 11 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
  


 SEWAGE SLUDGE HANDLING AND DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 


"Sewage sludge" is solid, semisolid, or liquid residue generated during the treatment of domestic sewage in a treatment works. Sewage sludge does not include the grit 
and screenings generated during preliminary treatment. 
 
1.     The permittee shall comply with all existing Federal and State laws and regulations that apply to the use and disposal of sewage sludge   and with technical 
standards developed pursuant to Section 405(d) of the Clean Water Act when such standards are promulgated. If an applicable numerical limit or management practice 
for pollutants in sewage sludge is promulgated after issuance of this permit that is more  stringent than a sludge pollutant limit or management practice specified in 
existing Federal or State laws or regulations, this permit shall be  modified, or revoked and reissued, to conform to the regulations promulgated under Section 405(d) of 
the Clean Water Act. The permittee shall comply with the limitation no later than the compliance deadline specified in the applicable regulations. 
 
2.     The permittee shall provide written notice to the Department of Natural Resources prior to any planned changes in sludge disposal practices. 
 
3.     Land application of sewage sludge shall be conducted in accordance with criteria established in rule IAC 567--67.1  through 67.11 (455B). 


 


   


  


 


 


 


 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 12 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


 
 


 


 


   


MAJOR CONTRIBUTING INDUSTRIES LIMITATIONS, MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 


 


1. You are required to notify the department, in writing, of any of the following: 
 (a) 180 days prior to the introduction of pollutants to your facility from a significant industrial user.  A significant industrial user means an industrial user of a 
treatment works that: 
  (1) Discharges an average of 25,000 gallons per day or more of process wastewater excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and boiler blowdown wastewater; 
  (2) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five percent or more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the publicly-owned 
treatment works: 
  (3) Is subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 CFR 403.6 and 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N; or  
  (4) Is designated by the department as a significant industrial user on the basis that the contributing industry, either singly or in combination with other 
contributing industries, has a reasonable potential for adversely affecting the operation of or effluent quality from the publicly-owned treatment works or for 
violating any pretreatment standards or requirements. 
 
 (b) 60 days prior to a proposed expansion, production increase or process modification that may result in the discharge of a new pollutant or a discharge in 
excess of limitations stated in the existing treatment agreement. 
 
 (c) 10 days prior to any commitment by you to accept waste from any new significant industrial user.  Your written notification must include a new or revised 
treatment agreement in accordance with rule 64.3(5)(455B). 
 
2. You shall require all users of your facility to comply with Sections 204(b), 307 and 308 of the Clean Water Act. 
 
 Section 204(b) requires that all users of the treatment works constructed with funds provided under Sections 201(g) or 601 of the Act to pay their proportionate 
share of the costs of operation, maintenance and replacement of the treatment works. 
 
 Section 307 of the Act requires users to comply with pretreatment standards promulgated by EPA for pollutants that would cause interference with the 
treatment process or would pass through the treatment works. 
 
 Section 308 of the Act requires users to allow access at reasonable times to state and EPA inspectors for the purpose of sampling the discharge and reviewing 
and copying records. 
 


 


3. You shall limit and monitor pollutants for each significant industrial user as required elsewhere in this permit, and submit sample results to the department 
monthly.  Your report shall be submitted by the fifteenth day of the following month. 
 
 
Revised: June 16, 2009 CAC 
 


  


  


 
 
 
 
 
 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 13 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


Nutrient Reduction Requirements 
 
 
In support of the Iowa Nutrient Reduction Strategy you shall prepare and submit a report that evaluates the feasibility and reasonableness of reducing the amounts of nitrogen and 
phosphorus discharged into surface water.  The report shall be submitted no later than {twenty-four months from the issuance date} and shall address the following: 
 


 A description of the existing treatment facility with particular emphasis on its capabilities for removing nitrogen and phosphorus.  The description shall include 
monitoring data that define the current amounts of total nitrogen (TKN+nitrate+nitrite) and total phosphorus in both the raw wastewater and the final effluent.  


 
 A description and evaluation of operational changes to the existing treatment facility that could be implemented to reduce the amounts of total nitrogen and total 


phosphorus discharged in the final effluent and the feasibility and reasonableness of each.  Your evaluation must discuss the projected degree of total nitrogen and total 
phosphorus reduction achievable for each operational change.  When evaluating feasibility you must consider what, if any, effect operational changes would have on the 
removal of other pollutants (e.g. CBOD5, TSS). When evaluating reasonableness you shall include estimates of the additional cost, if any, to implement such changes and 
for a publicly-owned treatment works the impact on user rates. 


 
 A description and evaluation of new or additional treatment technologies that would achieve significant reductions in the amounts of total nitrogen and total phosphorus 


discharged in the final effluent with a goal of achieving annual average mass limits based on AWW design flow equivalent to concentrations of 10 mg/L total nitrogen and 
1 mg/L total phosphorus for plants treating typical domestic strength sewage.  For purposes of this evaluation typical domestic sewage is considered to contain 
approximately 25 – 35 mg/L total nitrogen and 4 - 8 mg/L total phosphorus.  For plants treating wastewater with total nitrogen and/or total phosphorus concentrations 
greater than typical domestic strength sewage, the evaluation shall include the projected reductions in the total nitrogen and phosphorus effluent concentrations achievable 
with the application of feasible and reasonable treatment technology with a goal of achieving at least a 66 % reduction in nitrogen and 75% reduction in total phosphorus.  
For each treatment technology the report shall assess its feasibility, reasonableness, practicability, the availability of equipment, capital costs, annual operating costs, 
impact on user rates and any non-water quality environmental impacts (e.g. additional air pollution, increased sludge production, etc.). 


 
 Based on the evaluations of operational changes and new or additional treatment technologies the report must select the preferred method(s) for reducing total nitrogen 


and total phosphorus in the final effluent, the rationale for the selected method(s) and an estimate of the effluent quality achievable. 
 


 The report must include a schedule for making operational changes and/or installing new or additional treatment technologies to achieve the projected effluent quality 
attainable using the selected method(s).  The effluent discharge limits will be based on one full year of operating data after implementation of the operational changes or 
completion of plant modifications and a six month optimization period and will be incorporated into the NPDES permit by amendment. 


 
 
 
The report shall be sent to the following addresses: 
 
Libby Atwater 
NPDES Section   
Iowa Department of Natural Resources  
502 East 9th Street  
Des Moines, IA 50319 
 
 
 
 
 







   


 
 


  


      


Facility Name: 
 


 


EVANSDALE CITY OF STP 
 


 


Permit Number: 
 


 


0723001 
 


 


      


   


Page 14 
 


   
 


 
 


 


   


E. coli Compliance Schedule 
 
1. The facility shall make necessary improvements to meet the E.coli limit according to the following schedule: 


 
•  Complete a Self-Assessment Matrix and submit a Work Record Request form to DNR’s Wastewater Engineering Section by [Insert date of 2 months from permit issuance].  


The forms and instructions are available on the DNR website at http://www.iowadnr.gov/InsideDNR/RegulatoryWater/WastewaterConstruction.aspx.  Questions on the forms 
should be directed to either Terry Kirschenman at 515/725-8422 or Emy Liu at 515/725-8421.   


 
• Submit a Facility Plan by [Insert 6 months from permit issuance date].  The Facility Plan shall be in accordance with Chapter 11.2 of the Iowa Wastewater Facilities 


Design Standards adopted April 25, 1979. 
 
• Submit progress report by [Insert 12 months from permit issuance date]. 


 
• Submit final plans and specifications by [Insert 17 months from permit issuance date].  


 
• Award contract for construction of wastewater treatment improvements by [Insert 19 months from permit issuance date]. 


 
• Submit progress report by [Insert 27 months from permit issuance date]. 
 
• Complete construction of wastewater treatment improvements by [Insert 35 months from permit issuance date]. 


 
• Achieve compliance with final E.coli limit by [Insert 36 months from permit issuance date]. 


 
Within fourteen (14) days following all dates of compliance, the permittee shall provide written notice of compliance with the scheduled event.  All written notices and progress reports 
shall be sent to the following address: 
 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
Environmental Services Division 
Regional Office #1 
909 West Main Street Suite 4 
Manchester, IA 52057 
 



http://www.iowadnr.gov/InsideDNR/RegulatoryWater/WastewaterConstruction.aspx





 
 


STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 


1. ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 
Rules of this Department that govern the operation of your facility in connection with 
this permit are published in Part 567 of the Iowa Administrative Code (IAC) in 
Chapters 60-65, 67, and 121.  Reference to the term “rule” in this permit means the 
designated provision of Part 567 of the IAC.  Reference to the term “CFR” means the 
Code of Federal Regulations. 


 
2. DEFINITIONS 


(a) 7 day average means the sum of the total daily discharges by mass, volume, or 
concentration during a 7 consecutive day period, divided by the total number of 
days during the period that measurements were made.  Four 7 consecutive day 
periods shall be used each month to calculate the 7-day average.  The first 7-day 
period shall begin with the first day of the month. 


(b) 30 day average means the sum of the total daily discharges by mass, volume, or 
concentration during a calendar month, divided by the total number of days during 
the month that measurements were made. 


(c) Daily maximum means the total discharge by mass, volume, or concentration 
during a twenty-four hour period. 


 
3. DUTY TO PROVIDE INFORMATION 


You must furnish to the Director, within a reasonable time, any information the 
Director may request to determine compliance with this permit or determine whether 
cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, in 
accordance with 567 IAC 64.3(11)“c”.  You must also furnish to the Director, upon 
request, copies of any records required to be kept by this permit. 
 


4. MONITORING AND RECORDS OF OPERATION 
(a) Maintenance of records.  You shall retain for a minimum of three years all paper 


and electronic records of monitoring activities and results including all original 
strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation and calibration 
and maintenance records.  {See 567 IAC 63.2(3)} 


(b) Any person who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any 
monitoring device or method required to be maintained under this permit shall, 
upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $10,000 or by 
imprisonment for not more than two years, or both.  {See 40 CFR 122.41(j)(5)} 


 
5. SIGNATORY REQUIREMENTS  


Applications, reports or other information submitted to the Department in connection 
with this permit must be signed and certified in accordance with 567 IAC 64.3(8). 
 


6. OTHER INFORMATION 
Where you become aware that you failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit 
application, or submitted incorrect information in a permit application, you must 
promptly submit such facts or information.  Where you become aware that you failed 
to submit any relevant facts in the submission of in any report to the director, 
including records of operation, you shall promptly submit such facts or information. 
{See 567 IAC 60.4(2)“a” and 567 IAC 63.7} 


 


7. TRANSFER OF TITLE OR OWNER ADDRESS CHANGE 
If title to your facility, or any part of it, is transferred the new owner shall be subject to 
this permit.  You are required to notify the new owner of the requirements of this 
permit in writing prior to any transfer of title.  The Director shall be notified in writing 
within 30 days of the transfer.  No transfer of the authorization to discharge from the 
facility represented by the permit shall take place prior to notifying the department 
of the transfer of title.  Whenever the address of the owner is changed, the 
department shall be notified in writing within 30 days of the address change.  
Electronic notification is not sufficient; all title transfers or address changes must be 
reported to the department by mail.  {See 567 IAC 64.14} 


 
8. PROPER OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 


All facilities and control systems shall be operated as efficiently as possible and 
maintained in good working order.  A sufficient number of staff, adequately trained 
and knowledgeable in the operation of your facility shall be retained at all times and 
adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures shall be 
provided to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.   
{See 40 CFR 122.41(e) and 567 IAC 64.7(7)“f”} 


 
9. PERMIT MODIFICATION, SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION  


(a) This permit may be modified, suspended, or revoked and reissued for cause 
including but not limited to those specified in 567 IAC 64.3(11). 


(b) This permit may be modified due to conditions or information on which this 
permit is based, including any new standard the department may adopt that would 
change the required effluent limits.  {See 567 IAC 64.3(11)} 


(c) If a toxic pollutant is present in your discharge and more stringent standards for 
toxic pollutants are established under Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act, this 
permit will be modified in accordance with the new standards.   
{See 40 CFR 122.62(a)(6) and 567 IAC 64.7(7)“g”} 


The filing of a request for a permit modification, revocation or suspension, or a 
notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit 
condition. 


 
10. DUTY TO REAPPLY AND PERMIT CONTINUATION 


If you wish to continue to discharge after the expiration date of this permit, you must 
file a complete application for reissuance at least 180 days prior to the expiration date 
of this permit.  If a timely and sufficient application is submitted, this permit will 
remain in effect until the Department makes a final determination on the permit 
application.  {See 567 IAC 64.8(1) and Iowa Code 17A.18} 


 
11. DUTY TO COMPLY 


You must comply with all conditions of this permit.  Any permit noncompliance 
constitutes a violation of the Clean Water Act and is grounds for enforcement action; 
permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit 
renewal application.  Issuance of this permit does not relieve you of the responsibility 
to comply with all local, state and federal laws, ordinances, regulations or other legal 
requirements applying to the operation of your facility.  {See 40 CFR 122.41(a) and 
567 IAC 64.7(4)“e”} 







 
 


STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 


12. DUTY TO MITIGATE 
You shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of 
this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or 
the environment.  {See 40 CFR 122.41(d) and 567 IAC 64.7(7)“i”} 
 


13. TWENTY-FOUR HOUR REPORTING 
You shall report any noncompliance that may endanger human health or the 
environment, including, but not limited to, violations of maximum daily limits for any 
toxic pollutant (listed as toxic under 307(a)(1) of the Clean Water Act) or hazardous 
substance (as designated in 40 CFR Part 116 pursuant to 311 of the Clean Water 
Act).  Information shall be provided orally within 24 hours from the time you become 
aware of the circumstances.  A written submission that includes a description of 
noncompliance and its cause; the period of noncompliance including exact dates and 
times, whether the noncompliance has been corrected or the anticipated time it is 
expected to continue; and the steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent a 
reoccurrence of the noncompliance must be provided within 5 days of the occurrence.  
{See 567 IAC 63.12} 


 
14. OTHER NONCOMPLIANCE 


You shall report all instances of noncompliance not reported under Condition #13 at 
the time monitoring reports are submitted.  You shall give advance notice to the 
appropriate regional field office of the department of any planned activity which 
may result in noncompliance with permit requirements.  {See 567 IAC 63.14} 
 


15. INSPECTION OF PREMISES, RECORDS, EQUIPMENT, METHODS AND 
DISCHARGES 
You are required to permit authorized personnel to: 
(a) Enter upon the premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or 


conducted or where records are kept under conditions of this permit; 
(b) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under 


the conditions of this permit; 
(c) Inspect, at reasonable times, any facilities, equipment, practices or operations 


regulated or required under this permit; and 
(d) Sample or monitor, at reasonable times, to assure compliance or as otherwise 


authorized by the Clean Water Act. 
 
16. FAILURE TO SUBMIT FEES 


This permit may be revoked, in whole or in part, if the appropriate permit fees are not 
submitted within thirty (30) days of the date of notification that such fees are due. 
{See 567 IAC 64.16(1)} 


 
17. NEED TO HALT OR REDUCE ACTIVITY 


It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have 
been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance 
with the conditions of this permit.  {See 40 CFR 122.41(c) and 567 IAC 64.7(7)“j”} 


 
 
 


18. NOTICE OF CHANGED CONDITIONS  
You are required to notify the director of any changes in existing conditions or 
information on which this permit is based.  This includes, but is not limited to, the 
following: 
(a) If your facility is a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) or otherwise may 


accept waste for treatment from an indirect discharger or industrial contributor 
(See 567 IAC 64.3(5) for further notice requirements). 


(b) If your facility is a POTW and there is any substantial change in the volume or 
character of pollutants being introduced to the POTW by a source introducing 
pollutants into the POTW at the time of issuance of the permit.  {See 40 CFR 
122.42(b)} 


(c) As soon as you know or have reason to believe that any activity has occurred or 
will occur which would result in the discharge of any toxic pollutant which is not 
limited in this permit.  {See 40 CFR 122.42(a)} 


(d) If you have begun or will begin to use or manufacture as an intermediate or final 
product or byproduct any toxic pollutant which was not reported in the permit 
application. 


 
19. PLANNED CHANGES 


The permittee shall give notice to the appropriate regional field office of the 
department 30 days prior to any planned physical alterations or additions to the 
permitted facility.  Notice is required only when: 
(a) Notice has not been given to any other section of the department.  (Note: 


Facility expansions, production increases, or process modifications which may 
result in new or increased discharges of pollutants must be reported to the Director 
in advance.  If such discharges will exceed effluent limitations, your report must 
include an application for a new permit.  If any modification of, addition to, or 
construction of a disposal system is to be made, you must first obtain a written 
permit from this Department.  In addition, no construction activity that will result 
in disturbance of one acre or more shall be initiated without first obtaining 
coverage under NPDES General Permit No. 2 for “Storm water discharge 
associated with construction activity.”)  {See 567 IAC 64.7(7)“a” and 64.2} 


(b) The alteration or addition to a permitted facility may meet one of the criteria for 
determining whether a facility is a new source as defined in 567 IAC 60.2; 


(c) The alteration or addition results in a significant change in the permittee’s 
sludge use or disposal practices; or 


(d) The alteration or addition could significantly change the nature or increase the 
quantity of pollutants discharged.  This notification applies to pollutants that are 
not subject to effluent limitations in the permit.  {See 567 IAC 63.13 and 63.14} 


 
20. USE OF CERTIFIED LABORATORIES 


Analyses of wastewater, groundwater or sewage sludge that are required to be 
submitted to the department as a result of this permit must be performed by a 
laboratory certified by the State of Iowa.  Routine, on-site monitoring for pH, 
temperature, dissolved oxygen, total residual chlorine and other pollutants that must 
be analyzed immediately upon sample collection, settleable solids, physical 
measurements, and operational monitoring tests specified in 567 IAC 63.3(4) are 
excluded from this requirement. 







 
 


STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 


21. BYPASSES  
(a) Definition.  “Bypass” means the diversion of waste streams from any portion of 


a treatment facility or collection system.  A bypass does not include internal 
operational waste stream diversions that are part of the design of the treatment 
facility, maintenance diversions where redundancy is provided, diversions of 
wastewater from one point in a collection system to another point in a collection 
system, or wastewater backups into buildings that are caused in the building 
lateral or private sewer line. 


(b) Prohibitions. 
i. Bypasses from any portion of a treatment facility or from a sanitary sewer 


collection system designed to carry only sewage are prohibited. 
ii. Bypass is prohibited and the department may not assess a civil penalty 


against a permittee for bypass if the permittee has complied with all of the 
following: 
(1) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or 


severe property damage; and 
(2) There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass such as the use of 


auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or 
maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime.  This 
condition is not satisfied if adequate backup equipment should have 
been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to 
prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment 
downtime or preventive maintenance; and 


(3) The permittee submitted notices as required by paragraph (d) of this 
section. 


(c) The Director may approve an anticipated bypass after considering its adverse 
effects if the Director determines that it will meet the three conditions listed above 
and a request for bypass has been submitted to the Department in accordance with 
567 IAC 63.6(2). 


(d)  Reporting bypasses.  Bypasses shall be reported in accordance with 567 IAC 63.6. 
 
22. UPSET PROVISION 


(a) Definition.  “Upset” means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional 
and temporary noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limitations 
because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the permittee.  An upset does 
not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly 
designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive 
maintenance, or careless or improper operation. 


(b) Effect of an upset.  An upset constitutes an affirmative defense in an action 
brought for noncompliance with such technology based permit effluent limitations 
if the requirements of paragraph “c” of this condition are met.  No determination 
made during administrative review of claims that noncompliance was caused by 
upset, and before an action for noncompliance, is final administrative action 
subject to judicial review. 
 
 


(c) Conditions necessary for demonstration of an upset.  A permittee who wishes to 
establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate through properly 
signed operating logs or other relevant evidence that; 


i. An upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the 
upset; 


ii. The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated; 
iii. The permittee submitted notice of the upset to the Department in accordance 


with 567 IAC 63.6(3); and 
iv. The permittee complied with any remedial measures required in accordance 


with 567 IAC 63.6(6)”b”. 
(d) Burden of Proof.  In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to 


establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof. 
 
23. PROPERTY RIGHTS 


This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege.  
{See 567 IAC 64.4(3)“b”} 


 
24. EFFECT OF A PERMIT 


Compliance with a permit during its term constitutes compliance, for purposes of 
enforcement, with Sections 301, 302, 306, 307, 318, 403 and 405(a)-(b) of the Clean 
Water Act, and equivalent limitations and standards set out in 567 IAC Chapters 61 
and 62.  {See 567 IAC 64.4(3)“a”} 
 


25. SEVERABILITY 
The provisions of this permit are severable and if any provision or application of any 
provision to any circumstance is found to be invalid by this department or a court of 
law, the application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this 
permit, shall not be affected by such finding. 





		E. coli Compliance Schedule






STATE OF IOWA 


GOVERNOR KIM REYNOLDS  LT. GOVERNOR ADAM GREGG  
DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES CHUCK GIPP 


 


502 E 9TH ST, DES MOINES IA 50319 
Phone: 515-725-8200 www.IowaDNR.gov  Fax: 515-725-8202 


Permit Rationale 
 
Date:                   June 14, 2017  
 
Permit Writer:     Libby Atwater 
 
Facility Name:       Evansdale, City of STP 
 
Location:   County: Black Hawk 


  Latitude: 42 degrees 27 minutes 45 seconds 
  Longitude: 92 degrees 18 minutes 13 seconds 


 
Region/ FO:   DNR FO# 1, Manchester 
 
 
Design: Outfall 001 Discharges to the Cedar River Slough (General Use) to the Cedar 
  River (A1, B(WW-1)), HH  
  
    Date Constructed: 2002 
    Flow: ADW: 0.6360 MGD; AWW: 1.5170 MGD; MWW: 1.8150 MGD 
    TKN: 210.00 lbs./day 
    BOD5: 1109.00 lbs./day 
    P.E.: 6,641 


 Source: Construction Permit: 2002-164-S     
  
  
Treatment Plant Description: Wastewater treatment is provided by a mechanical treatment plant system that 
consists of activated sludge, an aerobic digester, grinding/comminutors, grit removal, polishing pond and primary 
clarifier. The facility accepts waste from the city of Evansdale. 
 
Wasteload allocation: WLA dated January 12, 2017 


 
Antidegradation:  According to the Iowa Antidegradation Implementation Procedure, effective February 17, 2010 
(IAC 567-61.2(2).e), all new or expanded regulated activities (with limited exceptions) are subject to antidegradation 
review requirements. The city of Evansdale’s wastewater treatment facility has not triggered any of the factors that 
would require the facility to complete an antidegradation assessment, therefore such an assessment is not required at 
this time.  
 
Impaired Waterbody: The following stream segments in the discharge route are on the 2014 impaired waters list: 


• The Cedar River- primary contact 


• The Iowa River- primary contact 


• The Mississippi River- aquatic life 


 
TMDLs were completed for impaired segments of the Cedar River for nitrate (2007) and bacteria (2010). 
This facility was assigned WLAs in both TMDLs. TMDLs for the other impairments listed above have not been 
completed at this time. Information on impaired streams in Iowa and approved TMDLs can be found at the 



http://www.iowadnr.gov/





following website: http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water Quality/Watershed-
Improvement/Impaired-Waters 
 
Limits: 
 
Effective from permit issuance to permit expiration 


 
Effective 36 months from permit issuance  


 
Basis for limits: 
 
CBOD5 
CBOD5 concentration limits are consistent with Standard Secondary Treatments outlined in 567 IAC 62.3 (455B). 
Mass limits are based on treatment plant design flows. Limits and monitoring are included in the permit to remain 
consistent with Chapter 63 IAC, Table II and Secondary Treatment Standards. 
 
TSS 
TSS concentration limits are consistent with Standard Secondary Treatments outlined in 567 IAC 62.3(455B). Mass 
limits are based on treatment plant design flows. Limits and monitoring are included in the permit to remain 
consistent with Chapter 63 IAC, Table II and Secondary Treatment Standards. 
 
pH 
Iowa does not currently have numerical criteria for general use streams. Therefore, pH limits are TBELS, consistent 
with Standard Secondary Requirements.  
 
TDS, Chloride and Sulfate 
The results of total dissolved solids (TDS) and chloride samples submitted were 640 mg/L and 122 mg/L 
respectively. The sample result for chloride that was provided in the application is well below the 30-day average 
(1,500 mg/L) and daily maximum (2,367 mg/L) chloride limits calculated in the January 12, 2017 WLA.  
Therefore, there is no reasonable potential for the discharge to violate the chloride WQS and no chloride limits have 
been proposed. As of November 11, 2009, the Department adopted chloride and sulfate water quality standards. 
Although no sulfate data is available, sulfate is a portion of TDS. The chloride sample was subtracted from the TDS 


Parameter Season 7-day 
ave 


mg/L 


30-day 
ave 


mg/L 


daily 
max 


mg/L 


min max 7-day 
ave 


lbs/day 


30-day 
ave 


lbs/day 


daily 
max 


lbs/day 


CBOD5 yearly 40 25 --- --- --- 506 316 --- 


TSS yearly 45 30 --- --- --- 569 379 ---  


pH yearly --- --- --- 6.0 9.0 --- --- --- 


DO yearly --- --- --- 1.0 --- --- --- --- 


Total Nitrogen  yearly --- --- --- --- --- --- 232.2 380.0 


NH3-N monthly  See WLA dated January 12, 2017 


Parameter Season 7-day 
ave 


mg/L 


30-day 
ave 


mg/L 


daily 
max 


mg/L 


min max 7-day 
ave 


lbs/day 


30-day 
ave 


lbs/day 


daily 
max 


lbs/day 


E. coli summer Geo Mean 
#org/100mL 


126 
 


--- --- --- --- 



http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water





sample, the result being 518 mg/L of sulfate. This is less than 50% of both the 30 day average limit (2,000 mg/L) 
and the daily maximum limit (2,692) for sulfate in the WLA dated January 12, 2017. Therefore, neither monitoring 
nor limits have been proposed. 
 
E.coli 
A sample for fecal coliform was included with the permit application. The result was 4,800 C/100 mL. The 
equivalent E.coli to fecal coliform ratio is 1:1.6; therefore the E.coli equivalent is 3,000 org/ 100mL.  The facility 
does not have discharge monitoring data to review as they were not required to monitor for E.coli during their 
previous permit cycle. The state of Iowa does not have numerical criteria for E.coli in general use streams. In 2010, 
the facility received an E.coli allocation of 126 org/ 100 mL in the Cedar River TMDL. The more stringent limits 
govern. The criteria apply at “end-of-pipe”.  The facility is not currently disinfecting and the Department does not 
expect an activated sludge facility to consistently meet an E. coli limit of 126 org./100mL geometric mean.  A 
compliance schedule for installing disinfection is included in the draft NPDES permit.  According to the schedule, 
the facility is required to achieve compliance with final E. coli limits (126 org./100mL geometric mean) by [36 
months after permit issuance].  Due to the inability of the Evansdale facility to disinfect until after disinfection 
equipment is installed, I will not be proposing an interim limit for E. coli.  At this time, it is unknown if the City will 
install chlorine or UV disinfection.  If the City installs chlorine disinfection, the permit will be reopened to include 
total residual chlorine limits.     
 
Ammonia 
A sample for ammonia was submitted with the permit application. The result was <0.50 mg/L. The facility did not 
have ammonia monitoring required as part of their previous permit. However, the facility is required to complete a 
Whole Effluent Toxicity Test (WET Test) annually, and ammonia (as N) is component of the WET Test. The 
Department reviewed the WET Test results from the previous permit cycle and determined that the Evansdale 
facility has no reasonable potential to violate the ammonia limits proposed in this permit. Monitoring and limits will 
apply at permit issuance. 
 
Chlorine, Total Residual 
A sample for total residual chlorine was included with the permit application. The result was <0.10 mg/L. At this 
time, the Department believes there is no reasonable potential for the city of Evansdale’s wastewater treatment 
facility to violate the limits proposed in the permit. Therefore neither monitoring nor limits have been included. 
However, a compliance schedule for disinfection has been included in the permit. If the facility chooses to install 
chlorine disinfection, the permit will be reopened to include total residual chlorine limits.   
 
Dissolved Oxygen 
The January 12, 2017 WLA states that an effluent DO of 1.0 mg/L is required to prevent instream DO levels from 
dropping below 1.0 mg/L. The sample result for DO submitted with the permit application was 4.9 mg/L. Limits and 
monitoring are included to ensure permit limits are being met.  
 
Nitrate + Nitrite Nitrogen, TKN, Total Nitrogen, and Phorphorus 
The nitrate + nitrite nitrogen sample result submitted by the City of Evansdale was reported as 27 mg/L. The water 
quality criterion for nitrate + nitrite (10 mg/L) applies only to Class “C” waters that are used for drinking water, 
which the Cedar River Slough is not. The TKN and total phosphorus sample results were 1.7 mg/L and 3.30 mg/L, 
respectively. There are no applicable numeric water quality criteria for TKN or total phosphorus. Based on 
information currently available, the Department cannot make a reasonable potential determination specific to 
nitrogen and/or phosphorus for the narrative WQS at 567 IAC 61.3(2). However, NPDES permits are protective of 
Iowa’s narrative standards that apply at all times to all surface waters regardless of whether or not the standards are 
specifically included in the permit. The Department is addressing nitrogen and phosphorus discharges from point 
sources through the Iowa Nutrient Reduction Strategy. 
 
In 2006, the EPA approved a TMDL for Nitrate for the Cedar River. The city of Evansdale was assigned a Total 
Nitrogen WLA of 22.3 tons/year and 122.22 lbs/day. Using the procedure outlined in the November 20, 2008 memo 
“Deriving total nitrogen limits from the WLA in the Cedar River TMDL”, the 30-day average and daily maximum 
nitrate limits for the city of Evansdale are 232.2 lbs/day and 380.0 lbs/day, respectively. 







  
Oil and Grease 
The facility reported <5.00 mg/L of oil and grease present in the effluent. In most cases there is no visible sheen if 
the oil and grease is less than 10 mg/L and therefore does not violate the State’s narrative standard for oil and grease. 
Thus, no limits or monitoring have been proposed. 
 
Part B Review 
Part B of the permit application requires expanded effluent testing. The detection level for the following 
pollutants submitted with the permit application were not low enough to determine whether or not the facility will 
be able to meet the WQBELs calculated in the January 12, 2017 WLA: 
 


Cadmium Silver 
Selenium Thallium 
Hexachlorobenzene Chlorodibromomethane 


 
The operator for the facility was contacted and the facility resubmitted results for the pollutants listed above. The 
new test results confirm that the facility does not have the potential to violate the WQBELS calculated in the 
January 12, 2017 WLA. Therefore no limits or monitoring are included. The exception is Hexachlorobenzene. 
The detection level was not low enough to determine whether or not the facility will violate limits. However, the 
use of Hexachlorobenzene has been banned in the United States and therefore the department does not think the 
discharge has the potential to violate limits. Neither limits nor monitoring is included.   
 
Backsliding: The permit has been reviewed for anti-backsliding according to sections 303(d)(4) and 402(o) of the 
Clean Water Act and 40 CFR 122.44.  All limits and conditions proposed in this permit are at least as stringent as 
those in the previous permit.  Backsliding is not occurring. 
 
Effluent Toxicity: Toxicity tests have not been conducted by US EPA Region VII. The Department is 
incorporating toxicity and limits testing into the permit as per revised Rule 567 IAC 63.4(455B) which 
became effective June 19, 1991. The dilution percentages for effluent toxicity testing specified in the 
January 12, 2017 WLA are 100% of effluent and 0% of dilution water for Outfall 001. An annual monitoring 
frequency is specified in the permit. 
 
Monitoring Basis: Compliance and operational monitoring are based on Chapter 63 IAC, Table II.  Category 3,001 
– 15,000. The DNR recently updated Chapter 63 of the Iowa Administrative Code which contains the monitoring 
and reporting requirements for NPDES permits.  Most of the prescribed requirements for operational monitoring 
have been removed from Chapter 63; two requirements (TRC and lagoon cell depth) remain.  While your reissued 
NPDES permits does not include the operational monitoring requirements of the past, the rule requires permittees to 
perform operational monitoring to ensure proper facility operation in accordance with the facility design, and 
requires permittees to maintain records of operational monitoring for three years.  Thus, necessary operational 
monitoring can be performed at the discretion of your facility upon reissuance.  Please note that operational 
monitoring requirements can still be placed in permits on a case-by-case basis.      
  
Special Monitoring: See the special monitoring pages in the permit for the ammonia, total nitrogen, and E. coli 
special monitoring language for outfall 001.   
 
Sludge: Sludge will be land applied according to Chapter 567 IAC 67 land application rules, or otherwise 
disposed of in accordance with federal regulations specified in 40 CFR Part 503. No adverse environmental 
impacts have been identified. 
 
Compliance Schedule (E.coli):  Per Subrule 567 IAC 64.7(4) the Department is authorized to include schedules of 
compliance in NPDES permits.  Due to the expected inability to comply with the proposed and E. coli effluent 
limits, a compliance schedule to upgrade the facility is necessary.  The timeframe (36 months from permit issuance) 
is deemed to result in compliance as soon as possible due to the time it takes to design the project, obtain the 
appropriate permits, secure funding, construct the equipment, and obtain a level of operation. 







 
Comments: The permit contains a requirement for the City to conduct a two year feasibility study to determine 
the facility's ability to remove nutrients (total nitrogen and total phosphorus). The requirement is based on the 
2013 Iowa Nutrient Reduction Strategy. The facility is required to evaluate the feasibility and reasonableness of 
reducing the amounts of nitrogen and phosphorus discharged into surface water. The report shall be submitted no 
later than [24 months from permit issuance date]. 
 
 
 





		Permit Rationale

		Design: Outfall 001 Discharges to the Cedar River Slough (General Use) to the Cedar

		River (A1, B(WW-1)), HH

		Date Constructed: 2002

		Flow: ADW: 0.6360 MGD; AWW: 1.5170 MGD; MWW: 1.8150 MGD

		TKN: 210.00 lbs./day

		BOD5: 1109.00 lbs./day

		P.E.: 6,641

		Monitoring Basis: Compliance and operational monitoring are based on Chapter 63 IAC, Table II.  Category 3,001 – 15,000. The DNR recently updated Chapter 63 of the Iowa Administrative Code which contains the monitoring and reporting requirements for N...

		Special Monitoring: See the special monitoring pages in the permit for the ammonia, total nitrogen, and E. coli special monitoring language for outfall 001.

		Sludge: Sludge will be land applied according to Chapter 567 IAC 67 land application rules, or otherwise disposed of in accordance with federal regulations specified in 40 CFR Part 503. No adverse environmental impacts have been identified.

		Compliance Schedule (E.coli):  Per Subrule 567 IAC 64.7(4) the Department is authorized to include schedules of compliance in NPDES permits.  Due to the expected inability to comply with the proposed and E. coli effluent limits, a compliance schedule ...






Jan. 12, 2017                                                                                                                                NPDES # 6- 07-23-0-01 
 
 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 


City of Evansdale 
 


    
 
 (Please do not microfiche this document.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 This Package Contains 
 


 WASTELOAD ALLOCATION CALCULATIONS & NOTES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


Please Do Not Separate 
 







1 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 
WATER QUALITY BASED PERMIT LIMITS 


SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  
Facility Name:  Evansdale, City of STP Sewage File Number: 6-07-23-0-01 


Parameters Ave. Conc. (mg/l)  Max Conc. (mg/l) Ave. Mass (lbs/d) Max Mass (lbs/d) Sampling Frequency 


Outfall No. 001  ADW =0.636  mgd  AWW =1.517 mgd  
CBOD5 Secondary Treatment Levels Will Not Violate WQS -- 
Total D.O. (Jan – Dec) Minimum Concentration of 1.0 mg/l -- 
Ammonia – Nitrogen1   


January 39.4 39.4 498.0 498.0 -- 
February 36.8 36.8 465.5 465.5 -- 


March 38.1 38.1 478.6 478.6 -- 
April 40.7 40.7 322.6 322.6 -- 
May 39.4 39.4 322.6 322.6 -- 
June 27.7 27.7 274.5 274.5 -- 
July 21.5 21.5 225.2 225.2 -- 


August 24.2 24.2 237.9 237.9 -- 
September 25.7 25.7 249.2 249.2 -- 


October 40.7 40.7 394.1 394.1 -- 
November 38.1 38.1 322.6 322.6 -- 
December 41.4 41.4 394.1 394.1 -- 


Bacteria2 Geometric Mean (#org/100ml) March 15th – November 15th -- E. coli 126 
Chloride3 1,500 2,367 18,978 19,862 -- 
Sulfate3 2,000 2,692 25,304 34,059 -- 
TRC 0.053 0.053 0.665 0.665 -- 
Total Nitrogen4 -- -- 232.2 380.0 -- 
pH Technology Based Limits Will Not Violate WQS -- 


Major Facility Acute WET Testing Ratio: Use 100% of effluent and 0% of dilution water for the testing  
Stream Network/Classification of Receiving Stream:  Cedar River Slough ( Afforded General Use criteria 
protection ) to the Cedar River  ( A1, B(WW-1), HH ) 


Date Done:   
Jan. 12, 2017 


Annual critical low flow in Cedar River Slough at the discharge point 
30Q10 flow   0.000  cfs, 7Q10 flow  0.000 cfs, 1Q10 flow   0.000  cfs,  Harmonic mean flow  0.000  cfs       
 


Annual critical low flow in the Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough  
30Q10 flow   338  cfs, 7Q10 flow   296 cfs, 1Q10 flow   270 cfs,  Harmonic Mean flow   1,525  cfs       
 


Annual critical low flow in the Cedar River at the Cedar Rapids Municipal Water Works Intake  
30Q10 flow   399  cfs, 7Q10 flow   348 cfs, 1Q10 flow   302 cfs,  Harmonic Mean flow   1,874  cfs       
 


Excel Spreadsheet calculations [X]                                  Qual II E Model [ ]                                        Qual II E Modeling date[ ] 
 


Performed by:                Collin Klingbeil                                                                                   Approved By: Connie Dou 
1. The bold values are governed by the CBOD/DO modeling, the gray cells will be limited by the TMDL based Total Nitrogen WLA. 
2. Cedar River E. coli TMDL based limit. 567 IAC 62.8(2) states that “the daily sample maximum criteria for E. coli set forth in Part E 
of the ‘Supporting Document for Iowa Water Quality Management Plans’ shall not be used as an end-of-pipe permit limitation.” 
Therefore, only the geometric mean limit applies.  
3. Chloride/sulfate limits are based on the new chloride/sulfate criteria that took effective on Nov. 11, 2009. Chloride/sulfate criteria 
are hardness dependent and the default hardness has been changed from 100 mg/l to 200 mg/l, effective Nov. 11, 2009. 
4. Cedar River Nitrate TMDL based limits converted to a 30-day average and daily maximum using the procedure from the Nov. 20, 
2008 memo “Deriving total nitrogen limits form the WLA in the Cedar River TMDL” 


Antidegradation Review Requirement 
A tier II antidegradation review is not required. See Section 2 for details. 


 


Please note that the antidegradation review conducted in this WLA is based on the current information available.  Antidegradation 
could also be triggered during the NPDES permitting process based on new information.   







2 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


 


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 
WATER QUALITY BASED PERMIT LIMITS 


SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d) 
Facility Name:  Evansdale, City of STP Sewage File Number: 6-07-23-0-01 


Parameters Ave. Conc. (mg/l)  Max Conc. (mg/l) Ave. Mass (lbs/d) Max Mass (lbs/d) Sampling Frequency 


Outfall No. 001  ADW =0.636  mgd  AWW =1.517 mgd  


Toxics   


1,1,1-Trichloroethane 2.640E+01 2.640E+01 3.340E+02 3.340E+02 -- 
1,1,2-Trichloroethane 1.143E+01 1.143E+01 6.069E+01 6.069E+01 -- 
1,1-Dichloroethylene 5.400E+01 5.400E+01 6.832E+02 6.832E+02 -- 


1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 2.483E+01 2.483E+01 1.322E+02 1.322E+02 -- 
1,2-Dichloroethane 7.242E+00 5.900E+01 3.844E+01 7.465E+02 -- 


1,2-Dichloropropane 9.528E+00 9.528E+00 5.058E+01 5.058E+01 -- 
2,3,7,8-TCDD  (Dioxin) 1.092E-08 1.092E-08 5.830E-08 5.830E-08 -- 


2,4,5-TP (Silvex) 3.547E+00 3.547E+00 1.889E+01 1.889E+01 -- 
2,4-D 3.547E+01 3.547E+01 1.889E+02 1.889E+02 -- 


3,3-Dichlorobenzidine 5.995E-02 5.995E-02 3.201E-01 3.201E-01 -- 
4,4' DDT 4.237E-05 5.251E-03 2.321E-04 3.593E-02 -- 
Alachlor 7.094E-01 7.094E-01 3.777E+00 3.777E+00 -- 
Aldrin 1.071E-04 1.432E-02 5.715E-04 9.800E-02 -- 


Aluminum 3.580E+00 3.580E+00 2.019E+01 2.450E+01 -- 
Antimony 1.986E+00 1.100E+01 1.058E+01 1.392E+02 -- 


Arsenic (III) 3.430E-01 1.623E+00 1.821E+00 1.111E+01 -- 
Asbestos 2.483E+00 2.483E+00 1.322E+01 1.322E+01 -- 
Atrazine 1.064E+00 1.064E+00 5.666E+00 5.666E+00 -- 
Barium 2.050E+02 2.050E+02 1.889E+03 2.594E+03 -- 
Benzene 1.650E+01 1.650E+01 2.088E+02 2.088E+02 -- 


Benzo(a)Pyrene 3.854E-02 3.854E-02 2.058E-01 2.058E-01 -- 
Beryllium 5.000E-01 5.000E-01 6.326E+00 6.326E+00 -- 


Bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 4.711E+00 4.711E+00 2.515E+01 2.515E+01 -- 
Bromoform 8.194E+01 8.194E+01 4.350E+02 4.350E+02 -- 
Cadmium 1.916E-02 2.060E-02 1.050E-01 1.410E-01 -- 


Carbofuran 1.419E+01 1.419E+01 7.555E+01 7.555E+01 -- 
Carbon Tetrachloride 3.426E+00 2.155E+01 1.829E+01 2.726E+02 -- 


Chlordane 1.822E-04 1.146E-02 9.979E-04 7.840E-02 -- 
Chloride 1.500E+03 2.367E+03 1.8978E+04 1.9862E+04 -- 


Chlorobenzene 1.610E+01 1.610E+01 1.889E+02 2.037E+02 -- 
Chlorodibromomethane 7.623E+00 7.623E+00 4.046E+01 4.046E+01 -- 


Chloroform 1.086E+02 1.086E+02 5.766E+02 5.766E+02 -- 
Chloropyrifos 3.962E-04 3.962E-04 2.711E-03 2.711E-03 -- 


Chromium (VI) 7.637E-02 7.637E-02 5.227E-01 5.227E-01 -- 
cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene 2.483E+01 2.483E+01 1.322E+02 1.322E+02 -- 


Copper 1.125E-01 1.125E-01 7.942E-01 7.942E-01 -- 
Cyanide 6.255E-02 6.255E-02 7.187E-01 7.187E-01 -- 
Dalapon 7.094E+01 7.094E+01 3.777E+02 3.777E+02 -- 


Di(2-ethylhexyl)adipate 1.419E+02 1.419E+02 7.555E+02 7.555E+02 -- 


 
  







3 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 
WATER QUALITY BASED PERMIT LIMITS 


SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d) 
Facility Name:  Evansdale, City of STP Sewage File Number: 6-07-23-0-01 


Parameters Ave. Conc. (mg/l)  Max Conc. (mg/l) Ave. Mass (lbs/d) Max Mass (lbs/d) Sampling Frequency 


Outfall No. 001  ADW =0.636  mgd  AWW =1.517 mgd  


Toxics   


Dibromochloropropane 7.094E-02 7.094E-02 3.777E-01 3.777E-01 -- 
Dichlorobromomethane 1.048E+01 1.048E+01 5.564E+01 5.564E+01 -- 


Dichloromethane 1.773E+00 1.773E+00 9.444E+00 9.444E+00 -- 
Dieldrin 1.156E-04 1.146E-03 6.173E-04 7.840E-03 -- 
Dinoseb 2.483E+00 2.483E+00 1.322E+01 1.322E+01 -- 
Diquat 7.094E+00 7.094E+00 3.777E+01 3.777E+01 -- 


Endosulfan 4.150E-04 4.150E-04 5.250E-03 5.250E-03 -- 
Endothall 3.547E+01 3.547E+01 1.889E+02 1.889E+02 -- 


Endrin 2.050E-04 2.050E-04 2.594E-03 2.594E-03 -- 
Ethylbenzene 2.265E+01 2.265E+01 2.866E+02 2.866E+02 -- 


Ethylene dibromide 1.773E-02 1.773E-02 9.444E-02 9.444E-02 -- 
Fluoride 8.077E+00 8.077E+00 1.022E+02 1.022E+02 -- 
gamma-


Hexachlorocyclohexane 
(Lindane) 


4.535E-03 4.535E-03 3.103E-02 3.103E-02 -- 


Glyphosate 2.483E+02 2.483E+02 1.322E+03 1.322E+03 -- 
Heptachlor 1.610E-04 2.482E-03 8.819E-04 1.699E-02 -- 


Heptachlor epoxide 8.351E-05 2.482E-03 4.458E-04 1.699E-02 -- 
Hexachlorobenzene 6.209E-04 6.209E-04 3.315E-03 3.315E-03 -- 


Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 1.419E+01 1.419E+01 7.555E+01 7.555E+01 -- 
Iron 1.000E+00 1.000E+00 1.265E+01 1.265E+01 -- 
Lead 3.259E-01 9.423E-01 1.785E+00 6.449E+00 -- 


Mercury (II) 6.355E-03 7.828E-03 3.481E-02 5.357E-02 -- 
Methoxychlor 3.547E+01 3.547E+01 1.889E+02 1.889E+02 -- 


Nickel 3.972E+00 4.026E+00 2.176E+01 2.755E+01 -- 
Nitrate as N* 3.200E+02 3.200E+02 4.049E+03 4.049E+03 -- 


Nitrate+Nitrite as N* 3.200E+02 3.200E+02 4.049E+03 4.049E+03 -- 
Nitrite as N* 3.547E+02 3.547E+02 1.889E+03 1.889E+03 -- 


o-Dichlorobenzene 2.128E+02 2.128E+02 1.133E+03 1.133E+03 -- 
Oxamyl (Vydate) 7.094E+01 7.094E+01 3.777E+02 3.777E+02 -- 


para-Dichlorobenzene 2.000E+00 2.000E+00 2.530E+01 2.530E+01 -- 
Parathion 3.103E-04 3.103E-04 2.123E-03 2.123E-03 -- 


Pentachlorophenol (PCP) 1.123E-01 1.123E-01 7.785E-01 7.785E-01 -- 
Phenols 2.118E+00 1.193E+01 1.160E+01 8.167E+01 -- 
Picloram 1.773E+02 1.773E+02 9.444E+02 9.444E+02 -- 


Polychlorinated Biphenyls 
(PCBs) 1.370E-04 9.547E-03 7.316E-04 6.533E-02 -- 


Polynuclear Aromatic 
Hydrocarbons (PAHs) 1.271E-03 1.432E-01 6.962E-03 9.800E-01 -- 


Selenium 9.212E-02 9.212E-02 6.305E-01 6.305E-01 -- 
Silver 1.814E-02 1.814E-02 1.241E-01 1.241E-01 -- 


Simazine 1.419E+00 1.419E+00 7.555E+00 7.555E+00 -- 
* The mass limits will be controlled by the TMDL based Total Nitrogen WLAs. 







4 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


 


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 
WATER QUALITY BASED PERMIT LIMITS 


SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d) 
Facility Name:  Evansdale, City of STP Sewage File Number: 6-07-23-0-01 


Parameters Ave. Conc. (mg/l)  Max Conc. (mg/l) Ave. Mass (lbs/d) Max Mass (lbs/d) Sampling Frequency 


Outfall No. 001  ADW =0.636  mgd  AWW =1.517 mgd  


Toxics   


Styrene 3.547E+01 3.547E+01 1.889E+02 1.889E+02 -- 
Sulfate 2.000E+03 2.692E+03 2.5304E+04 3.4059E+04 -- 


Tetrachloroethlyene 7.066E+00 7.066E+00 3.772E+01 3.772E+01 -- 
Thallium 1.991E-02 5.980E-01 1.091E-01 7.566E+00 -- 
Toluene 2.118E+00 1.193E+01 1.160E+01 8.167E+01 -- 


Total Residual Chlorine 
(TRC) 5.3E-02 5.3E-02 6.65E-01 6.65E-01 -- 


Toxaphene 8.473E-05 3.484E-03 4.641E-04 2.385E-02 -- 
trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene 5.931E+00 5.931E+00 3.249E+01 3.249E+01 -- 
Trichloroethylene (TCE) 3.389E+00 1.909E+01 1.857E+01 1.307E+02 -- 
Trihalomethanes (total) 2.838E+01 2.838E+01 1.511E+02 1.511E+02 -- 


Vinyl Chloride 4.764E-01 4.764E-01 2.529E+00 2.529E+00 -- 
Xylenes (Total) 3.547E+03 3.547E+03 1.889E+04 1.889E+04 -- 


Zinc 1.029E+00 1.029E+00 7.042E+00 7.042E+00 -- 







5 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


WLA/permit limits for the City of Evansdale’s Mechanical Plant 
These wasteload allocations and water quality based permit limitations are for the City of Evansdale’s 
wastewater discharge. The wasteload allocations/permit limits are based on the Water Quality Standards 
(IAC 567.61) and 'Supporting Document for Iowa Water Quality Management Plans,' Chapter IV, 
November 11, 2009.  The chloride allocation/permit limits are based on the criteria that became effective 
on November 11, 2009.  
 
The water quality based limits in this WLA are calculated to meet the surface water quality criteria to 
protect downstream uses.  There could be technology based limits applicable to this facility that are more 
stringent than the water quality based limits shown in this WLA.  The technology based limits could be 
derived from either federal guidelines based on different industrial categories or permit writer’s judgment. 
 
1.  BACKGROUND:  The City of Evansdale discharges treated domestic wastewater from a mechanical 
plant (activated sludge) into a slough (hereafter referred to as Cedar River Slough) at 42° 27’ 45” N, 92° 
18’ 25” W that extends approximately 2,250 ft prior to flowing into the Cedar River.  
 
Route of Flow and Use Designations: 
Cedar River Slough is an oxbow lake/wetland/pond type waterbody that is not designated and is afforded 
general use criteria protection.  
 
The following designations have been adopted in Iowa's state rule described in the rule referenced 
document of Surface Water Classification effective on June 17, 2015. 
 
The receiving segment of the Cedar River is an A1, B(WW-1), HH designated use waterbody. Further 
downstream (approximately 70 miles) the Cedar River also has a Class C use designation at the Cedar 
Rapids Municipal Water Works intake. Based on the pollutants of concern the use designations of stream 
segments further downstream will not impact the resulting limits for this facility. 
 
Critical Low Flow Determination: 
The annual critical low flows in Cedar River Slough are estimated to be all zero since the only source of 
water to the slough under low flow conditions is the wastewater treatment plant discharge from the city of 
Evansdale.   
 
The annual critical low flows in the Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough are estimated based 
on the Drainage Area Ratio method and flow statistics obtained at USGS gage station 05464000, located 
on the Cedar River at Waterloo, Iowa.  
 
The annual critical low flows in the Cedar River at the Cedar Rapids Municipal Water Works intake (used 
for calculating WLAs for the protection of the Class C use designation) are estimated based on the 
Drainage Area Ratio method and flow statistic data obtained at USGS gage station 05464500, located on 
the Cedar River at Cedar Rapids, Iowa. 
 


Table 1: Annual Critical Low Flows  
 


Location 
Drainage 


Area 
(squaremile) 


Harmonic 
Mean  
(cfs) 


Annual critical low flows  
(cfs)  


1Q10 7Q10 30Q10 
USGS Gage (05464000)  5,146 1,520$ 269$ 295$ 337$ 
Cedar River at mouth of 


Cedar River Slough 5,162 1,525 @ 270@ 296@ 338@ 


USGS Gage (05464500) 6,510 1,880$ 303$ 349$ 400$ 
Cedar Rapids Municipal 


Water Works intake 6,488 1,874@ 302@ 348@ 399@ 
                                               $ :   USGS gage station statistic data 
                                @:   Estimated based on drainage area ratio method  







6 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


Mixing Zone (MZ) and Zone of Initial Dilution (ZID):  
Since the critical low flows in Cedar River Slough are estimated to be zero no MZ or ZID are available 
for WLA calculations for the general use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough.  
 
Waterloo’s diffuser discharges approximately 1,100 feet below where Cedar River Slough empties into 
the Cedar River. The default maximum MZ length of 2,000 feet is thus shortened to 1,100 feet for the 
calculation of WLAs for Evansdale for the protection of the Cedar River. The MZ and ZID for the WLA 
calculations for the protection of the Cedar River at the outlet of Cedar River slough are proportionately 
reduced to 55% (1,100 ft / 2,000 ft) of their default values (25% and 2.5%). The MZ and ZID are thus 
13.75% and 1.375% of applicable critical low flows for WLA calculations. Additionally, the discharge 
from Waterloo’s STP is considered in the CBOD/DO modeling (see Section 4).  
 
2. ANTIDEGRADATION REVIEW:  
According to the Iowa Antidegradation Implementation Procedure, effective February 17, 2010 (IAC 
567-61.2(2).e), all new or expanded regulated activities (with limited exceptions, such as unsewered 
communities) are subject to antidegradation review requirements.  
 


Table 2: Antidegradation Review Analysis 
Item # Factor or Scenario Antidegradation Determination Analysis/Comments 


1 Design Capacity Increase Yes , No , or Not Applicable  1: Existing design capacity sheet 
attached 


2 
Significant Industrial Users (SIU) 
Contributing New Pollutant of 
Concern (POC) 


Yes , No , or Not Applicable  As indicated in the request form  


3 New Process Contributing New 
Pollutant of Concern (POC) Yes , No , or Not Applicable  As indicated in the request form 


4 Less Stringent Water Quality Based 
Limits?  Yes , No , or Not Applicable  1: Current limits sheet attached 


5 Outfall Location Change Yes , No , or Not Applicable   
Conclusion and discussion:  
 
None of the factors triggers the antidegradation review; therefore a tier II antidegradation review is not required.  
 
Please note that the antidegradation review conducted in this WLA is based on the current information available.  Antidegradation 
could also be triggered during the NPDES permitting process based on new information.   
 


 
3.  TOTAL MAXIMUM DAILY LOAD (TMDL) LIMITATIONS:   
The following stream segments in the discharge route are on the 2014 impaired waters list: 


• The Cedar River for primary contact – indicator bacteria and pH, for aquatic life – pH, biological 
(mussels), and for drinking water – nitrate nitrogen 


• The Iowa River for primary contact – indicator bacteria 
• The Mississippi River for aquatic life – aluminum  


 
TMDLs were completed for impaired segments of the Cedar River for nitrate (2007) and bacteria (2010). 
See Section 4 for details. This facility was assigned WLAs in both TMDLs. TMDLs for the other 
impairments listed above have not been completed at this time.  
 
Please note that the results presented in this report are wasteload allocations based on meeting the State’s 
current water quality standards in the receiving waterbody.  Additional and/or more stringent effluent 
limits may be applicable to this discharge based on approved TMDLs for impaired waterbodies, which 
may provide watershed based wasteload allocations.  Information on impaired streams in Iowa and 
approved TMDLs can be found at the following website: http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-
Protection/Water-Quality/Watershed-Improvement/Impaired-Waters  



http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water-Quality/Watershed-Improvement/Impaired-Waters

http://www.iowadnr.gov/Environmental-Protection/Water-Quality/Watershed-Improvement/Impaired-Waters





7 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


4. CALCULATIONS: The wasteload allocations / permit limits for this outfall are calculated based on 
the facility’s Average Dry Weather (ADW) design flow of 0.636 mgd and its Average Wet Weather 
(AWW) design flow of 1.517 mgd. 
 
Please note that only wasteload allocations/permit limits (water quality based effluent limits) calculated 
using DNR approved design flows can be applied in NPDES permits.  Water quality based effluent limits 
calculated using proposed flows that have not been approved by the DNR for permitting and compliance 
may be used for informational purposes only. 
 
The water quality based permit concentration limits are derived using the allowed stream flow and the 
ADW design flow, while loading limits are derived using the allowed stream flow and the AWW design 
flow.   
 
Toxics: The Toxics wasteload allocations will consider the procedures included in the 2000 revised WQS 
and the 2007 chemical criteria.   
 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: General use criteria protection is achieved by 
assuming the WLA does not exceed a value set at ½ 96hrLC50 for critical species in the waterbody. Since 
the annual critical low flows in Cedar River Slough are estimated to be all zero the ½ 96hrLC50 values 
apply at “end-of-pipe”. 
 
To protect the aquatic life use of the Cedar River: The chronic WLA will continue to use the 7Q10 stream 
flow in its calculations. In this case, 13.75% of the 7Q10 flow and 1.375% of the 1Q10 flow in the Cedar 
River are used as the Mixing Zone (MZ) and Zone of Initial Dilution (ZID), respectively. 
 
To protect the HH use of the Cedar River: 
For pollutants that are non-carcinogenic and have criteria for human health protection, the criteria apply at 
the end of the MZ, which in this case is 13.75% of the 7Q10 flow in the Cedar River.  
 
For pollutants that are carcinogenic and have criteria for human health protection, the criteria apply at the 
end of the MZ, which in this case is 13.75% of the harmonic mean flow in the Cedar River.  
 
To protect the downstream C use of the Cedar River: 
The discharge from the City of Evansdale STP is assumed to be 100% mixed at the downstream water 
intake. 
 
For pollutants that are non-carcinogenic and have criteria for maximum contaminant level (MCL), the 
criteria apply at the end of the MZ, which in this case is 100% of the 7Q10 flow in the Cedar River at the 
water intake.  
 
For pollutants that are carcinogenic and have criteria for maximum contaminant level (MCL), the criteria 
apply at the end of the MZ, which in this case is 100% of the harmonic mean flow in the Cedar River at 
the water intake.  
 
Final limits: The final limits are the more stringent between those calculated for the general use criteria 
protection of Cedar River Slough, and the aquatic, HH, and Class C designations of the Cedar River.  
 
The TRC limits are based on a sampling frequency of 3/week based on a population equivalent (PE) of 
6,641; the limits for other toxics are based on a sampling frequency of 1/week.  
 


 







8 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


Ammonia Nitrogen:  


General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: General use criteria protection is considered in the 
form of “Free from Acutely Toxic Conditions”.  This provision is achieved by assuring the WLA does not 
exceed a value set at ½96hrLC50 for critical species in the waterbody. The Fathead Minnow is selected as 
the critical species.  For ammonia, the ½ 96hrLC50 for the Fathead Minnow is noted in Table 3 at the pH 
and temperature values associated with a mechanical plant, as shown in Table 4. Since the annual critical 
low flows in Cedar River Slough are estimated to be all zero, the ½ 96hrLC50 values apply at “end-of-
pipe”.  
 
 


Table 3: Instream ½96hrLC50 Values for Ammonia 
Associated with Mechanical Facilities 


Months 1/2LC50  (mg/l) 
January 39.4 
February 36.8 


March 38.1 
April 40.7 
May 39.4 
June 37.4 
July 45.6 


August 42.0 
September 42.7 


October 40.7 
November 38.1 
December 41.4 


 
Table 4: Standard Effluent pH & Temperature Values for Mechanical Facilities 


Months pH Temperature (°C) 
Jan. 7.67 12.4 
Feb. 7.71 11.3 


March 7.69 13.1 
April 7.65 16.2 
May 7.67 19.3 
June 7.7 22.1 
July 7.58 24.1 


August 7.63 24.4 
Sept. 7.62 22.8 


October 7.65 20.2 
November 7.69 17.1 
December 7.64 14.1 


 
To protect the downstream designated reach: To protect designated use waterbodies, standard stream 
background temperatures, pH, and concentrations of NH3-N are mixed with the discharge from the 
facility’s effluent pH and temperature values to calculate the applicable instream WQS criteria. 
 
Based on the ratio of the stream flow to the discharge flow, 2.5% of the 1Q10 and 25% of the 30Q10 flow 
in the Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough are the default ZID and the MZ, respectively. 
However, due to the shortened MZ the ZID and MZ are 13.75% of the 30Q10 flow and 1.375% of the 
1Q10 flow in the Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough. The Cedar River is a B(WW-1) 
stream, therefore, early life protection will begin in March and run through September.  
 







9 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


The monthly background temperatures, pH, and NH3-N concentrations shown in Table 5 are used for the 
wasteload allocation/permit limits calculations based on the Year 2000 ammonia criteria.  
 
Final Limits: The more stringent between the limits for the general use criteria protection of Cedar River 
Slough and those for the protection of the designated stream serve as the permit limits. Table 6 shows the 
calculated final ammonia nitrogen wasteload allocations for this facility. 


 
Table 5: Background Temperature, pH and NH3-N Concentrations 


For Use with Year 2000 Ammonia Criteria 
Months  pH Temperature (°C) NH3-N (mg/l) 


Jan. 7.8 0.6 0.5 
Feb. 7.7 1.2 0.5 


March 7.9 4.3 0.5 
April 8.1 11.7 0.5 
May 8.1 16.6 0.5 
June 8.1 21.4 0.5 
July 8.1 24.8 0.0 


August 8.2 23.8 0.0 
Sept. 8 22.2 0.5 


October 8 12.3 0.5 
November 8.1 6 0.5 
December 8 1.6 0.5 


 
Table 6: Wasteload Allocations for Ammonia Nitrogen for the Protection of Aquatic Life 


 
Months 


ADW-Based* AWW-Based** 


Acute (mg/l) Chronic (mg/l) Acute (mg/l) Chronic (mg/l) 


January 39.4 406.0 39.4 173.2 
February 36.8 461.9 36.8 197.0 


March 38.1 200.1 37.8 85.5 
April 40.7 139.3 25.5 59.6 
May 39.4 116.4 25.5 49.9 
June 37.4 74.0 25.5 31.8 
July 45.6 93.9 26.9 40.0 


August 42.0 85.6 22.2 36.5 
Sept. 42.7 85.9 31.2 36.9 


October 40.7 201.0 31.2 85.9 
November 38.1 252.9 25.5 108.0 
December 41.4 300.4 31.2 128.2 


                   *: bases for concentration limits;                    **: bases for mass loading limits 
 
 
 
  







10 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


CBOD5/Total Dissolved Oxygen: 
 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: 
Streeter-Phelps DO Sag Model is used to simulate the decay of CBOD and dispersion of total Dissolved 
Oxygen (DO) in the receiving water downstream from the outfall. The criterion is that the discharge 
cannot cause the DO level in the general use reach below 1.0 mg/l.  
 
Generally speaking, the chance that the DO levels in a shallow pond/slough (< 8ft) drops below 1.0 mg/l 
is small for the following reasons.  
 


1. DO levels above 1 mg/l are essential for nitrification to occur. If DO level drops below 1.0 mg/l, 
oxygen becomes the limiting factor and nitrification slows or ceases [1].  


2. CBOD decay would also slow down when DO levels close to 1 mg/l, at the same time, oxygen 
transfer from the atmosphere would be accelerated due to larger driving force.   


 
Thus, the effluent needs to have a minimum DO level of 1.0 for the protection of Cedar River Slough. 
 
Protection of downstream designated waterbody: 
Streeter-Phelps DO Sag Model is also used to simulate the decay of CBOD and dispersion of total DO in 
the downstream designated stream. The criterion is that the discharge cannot cause the DO level in warm 
waters below 5.0 mg/l.  
 
The City of Waterloo discharges approximately 1,100 feet downstream from the outlet of Cedar River 
Slough. The critical location for DO is likely downstream of the outfall of Waterloo, thus both the 
discharge from the city of Evansdale and city of Waterloo are considered in the modeling. Two reaches 
are considered in the modeling: Reach 1 is between the outlet of Cedar River Slough and the city of 
Waterloo STP outfall; Reach 2 is downstream of the Waterloo outfall. Details on the modeling of the two 
reaches are included below. 
 
Reach 1 (from the outlet of Cedar River Slough to the city of Waterloo STP outfall): 
The parameter values used in the modeling are listed below: 
 
Background:  The temperature and ammonia nitrogen levels are shown in Table 5. The ultimate CBOD 
and DO levels are assumed to be 8.0 mg/l and 6.0 mg/l, respectively.  
 
Effluent: It is assumed that when the effluent from the Evansdale discharge reaches the designated stream, 
its temperature and pH values have reached equilibrium with the environment. The pH and Temperatures 
are shown in Table 5. The CBOD5 level used in the modeling is 40 mg/l, which is the technology based 
maximum limit for standard secondary treatment.  The ammonia nitrogen values used in the modeling are 
the calculated acute wasteload allocations shown in Table 6. Both ADW and AWW flows and the 
ammonia nitrogen limits associated with them are used in the modeling. The DO level is assumed to be 
equal to the criterion of 1.0 mg/l for the protection of Cedar River Slough.  
 
Receiving stream parameters: There is an average water channel slope of 0.000288 (the water channel 
elevation changes from 820 ft to 800 ft over a distance of approximately 13.17 miles, estimated based on 
the USGS 7.5” topographic map). 
 
USGS gage 05464000, located on the Cedar River at Waterloo, IA, had field measurement data, such as 
stream flow, cross section area, stream width and velocity.  The stream depth is not reported, however, 
can be derived using the following equation: 
         


Depth = Cross Sectional Area / Width 







11 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


 
Regression equations of Ln (Velocity) vs. Ln (Flow) and Ln (Depth) vs. Ln (Flow) were established with 
acceptable R-squared values.  The Width is calculated using the Flow, Velocity, and Depth information. 
        


Ln (Velocity) = 0.3949*Ln (Flow) - 2.1812   R-squared = 0.6993 
        Ln (Depth) = 0.5341*Ln (Flow) - 3.3972       R-squared = 0.7677 
         


Width = Flow / Velocity / Depth 
 
The gage station is about 3.4 miles upstream of the reach.  Therefore in the absence of other data that 
could be used to estimate stream width, depth and velocity, it is assumed that the above regression 
equations are valid at the outfall.  The stream width, depth and velocity at 7Q10 and ADW/AWW 
conditions were estimated using the above regression equations.  
 


Table 7: Stream Width, Depth and Velocity of Reach 1 of the Cedar River 
Flow Condition Flow (cfs) Width (ft) Depth (ft) Velocity (fps) 


7Q10+ADW 296.984 396.5 0.70 1.07 
7Q10+AWW 298.347 396.6 0.70 1.07 


 
Reaeration: USGS (Channel-control) (Melching and Flores 1999) 
The Cedar River is a large channelized river with relatively consistent flow characteristics. The USGS 
Channel-control model is likely the most suitable reaeration model for this stream and is thus used in the 
modeling.  
 
Discussion and Conclusion: The modeling results show that the effluent, which could have an allowed 
maximum effluent CBOD5 level of 40 mg/l (technology based limits for secondary treatment), ammonia 
nitrogen levels as shown in Table 6 will not cause the DO level in Reach 1 of the Cedar River below 5.0 
mg/l at any time.  
 
Reach 2 (downstream of the Waterloo STP outfall): 
The parameter values used in the modeling are listed below: 
 
Background + Evansdale STP Effluent:  The background temperature levels are shown in Table 5. The 
background ammonia nitrogen, ultimate CBOD, and DO levels are obtained from the modeling on Reach 
1 of the Cedar River.  
 
Waterloo STP Effluent: Waterloo has a mechanical plant; the monthly effluent temperatures are shown in 
Table 4. The CBOD5 level used in the modeling is 40 mg/l, which is the technology based maximum 
limit for standard secondary treatment. The ammonia nitrogen values used in the modeling are the 
calculated acute wasteload allocations shown in Table 8 below (from the Jan. 21, 2016 WLA used for 
Waterloo’s recently issued NPDES permit). The wasteload allocations are those calculated for the diffuser 
discharge.   
 







12 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


Table 8: Waterloo Wasteload Allocations for Ammonia Nitrogen for CBOD/DO Modeling 
 


Months 
ADW-Based* AWW-Based** 


Acute (mg/l) Chronic (mg/l) Acute (mg/l) Chronic (mg/l) 


January 97.8 46.5 58.0 26.6 
February 112.9 52.9 65.2 30.1 


March 83.3 23.2 50.3 13.3 
April 62.9 16.2 40.7 9.4 
May 62.2 13.7 39.1 7.9 
June 50.5 8.8 23.4 5.2 
July 40.3 10.7 18.5 6.0 


August 44.1 9.7 20.3 5.5 
Sept. 46.3 10.2 21.3 6.0 


October 72.7 23.3 45.6 13.4 
November 61.5 29.1 39.3 16.7 
December 73.1 34.5 45.9 19.8 


                
Receiving stream parameters: See information for Reach 1. The stream width, depth and velocity at 7Q10 
and ADW/AWW conditions were estimated using the same regression equations with the addition of 
Waterloo’s design discharge flows (ADW = 18.0 mgd, AWW = 34.8 mgd). 
 


Table 9: Stream Width, Depth and Velocity of Reach 2 of the Cedar River 
Flow Condition Flow (cfs) Width (ft) Depth (ft) Velocity (fps) 


7Q10+ADW 324.830 399.0 0.73 1.11 
7Q10+AWW 352.182 401.3 0.77 1.14 


 
Reaeration: Same as the conclusion for Reach 1. 
 
Discussion and Conclusion: The modeling results show that the effluent from Evansdale’s discharge, 
which could have an allowed maximum effluent CBOD5 level of 40 mg/l (technology based limits for 
secondary treatment), a minimum DO level of 1.0 mg/l, will not cause the DO level in the Cedar River 
below 5.0 mg/l at any time; however, some of the calculated water quality based ammonia nitrogen 
wasteload allocations, as shown in Table 6, need to be reduced. The final ammonia nitrogen limits are 
shown on Page 1 of this report.  
 
E. coli:  
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: Iowa currently does not have numerical E. coli 
criteria for general use criteria protection. The narrative criteria stated in IAC 567.61.3.(2) apply. 
 
To protect the downstream designated reach: The water quality standard for E. coli in a Class (A1) water 
body is a Geometric Mean of 126 org./100 ml and a Sample Maximum of 235 org./100 ml from March 
15th through November 15th.  
 
The City of Evansdale was assigned E. coli limits of a Geometric Mean of 126 org./100 ml and a Sample 
Maximum of 235 org./100 ml in the 2010 bacteria TMDL for the Cedar River. These limits govern. 
 
Final effluent limit: However, 567 IAC 62.8(2) states that “the daily sample maximum criteria for E. coli 
set forth in Part E of the ‘Supporting Document for Iowa Water Quality Management Plans’ shall not be 
used as an end-of-pipe permit limitation.” Therefore, only the geometric mean limit of 126 org./100 mL 
applies.  
 







13 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


Chloride and Sulfate: The new chloride and sulfate criteria became effective on Nov. 11, 2009. The 
default hardness for background and effluent has been changed from 100 mg/l to 200 mg/l, effective on 
Nov. 11, 2009.  
 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: 
General use criteria protection from toxics is achieved by assuring the WLA does not exceed a value set 
at ½ 96hrLC50 for critical species in the waterbody, which are 2,367 mg/l for chloride and 2,692 mg/l for 
sulfate. Additionally, there are livestock watering guidelines of 1,500 mg/l for chloride, and 2,000 mg/l 
for sulfate. Since the annual critical low flows in Cedar River Slough are estimated to be all zero, the 
values apply at “end-of-pipe”.  
 
To protect the downstream designated reach: 
Chloride criteria are functions of hardness and sulfate concentration, shown as follows:  
 
                     Acute criteria = 287.8*(Hardness)0.205797 *(Sulfate) -0.07452  


                     Chronic criteria = 177.87*(Hardness)0.205797 *(Sulfate) -0.07452  


 
The criteria apply to all Class B waters.  
 
Sulfate criteria, shown in Table 10, are functions of hardness and chloride concentration.  
 


Table 10: Sulfate Criteria 
Hardness 


(mg/l as CaCO3) 
Sulfate Criteria (mg/l) 


Chloride < 5 mg/l 5 mg/l <= Chloride < 25 mg/l 25 mg/l <= Chloride < 500 mg/l 
< 100 500 500 500 
100<=H<=500 500 (-57.478+5.79*H+54.163*Cl)*0.65 (1276.7+5.508*H-1.457*Cl)*0.65 
H> 500 500 2,000 2,000 


 
The criteria defined in Table 10 serve as both acute and chronic criteria and apply to all Class B waters.  
 
The acute criteria apply at the end of the ZID, and the chronic criteria apply at the end of the MZ. In this 
case, 13.75% of the 7Q10 flow and 1.375% of the 1Q10 flow in the Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar 
River Slough are used as the MZ and the ZID, respectively. 
 
The default chloride and sulfate concentration for both background water and effluent are 34 and 63 mg/l, 
respectively.  
 
Final Limits: The more stringent between the limits for the protection of Cedar River Slough and those 
for the protection of designated stream serve as the permit limits. 
 
Total Nitrogen (TN): In the 2006 Nitrate TMDL for the Cedar River the City of Evansdale was assigned 
a Total Nitrogen WLA of 22.3 tons/year and 122.2 lbs/day. The WLA was converted to 30-day average 
and daily maximum TN limits of 232.2 lbs/day and 380.0 lbs/day, respectively, based on the procedure in 
the November 20, 2008 memo “Deriving total nitrogen limits from the WLA in the Cedar River TMDL”.  
 
Iron: The current iron criteria are defined in the 2005 issue paper entitled "Iron Criteria and 
Implementation for Iowa's Surface Waters (December 5, 2005)". An iron criterion of 1 mg/l applies at the 
end of the ZID for both general use and designated streams. 
 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: Since the critical low flows in Cedar River Slough 
are estimated to be all zero no ZID is available. The iron criterion applies at “end-of-pipe”.  
 







14 
By Collin Klingbeil 


DNR_WQB_WQMA\Permitting\WLA\NEWWLA\Evansdale - 0723001\1-12-2017\Evansdale_WLA writeup_1-12-2017 


To protect the downstream designated stream:  In this case the ZID is 1.375% of the 1Q10 flow in the 
Cedar River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough. 
 
Final Limits: The limits for the protection of Cedar River Slough are more stringent and thus govern.  
 
pH: 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: Iowa currently does not have numerical criteria for 
general use criteria protection. The narrative criteria stated in IAC 567.61.3 apply.  
 
To protect the downstream designated stream: Iowa Water Quality Standards (IAC 567.61.3.(3).a.(2) and 
IAC 567.61.3.(3).b.(2)) require that pH in Class A or Class B waters "Shall not be less than 6.5 nor 
greater than 9.0". The criteria apply at the end of the ZID, which is 1.375% of the 1Q10 flow in the Cedar 
River at the mouth of Cedar River Slough.  
 
pH change in Cedar River Slough: Effluent pH change may occur in Cedar River Slough; however, the 
pH change is difficult to model without substantial amount of site-specific data. Based on professional 
judgment, the technology based pH limits of 6.0 – 9.0 will be protective of the WQS in the designated use 
stream due to pH change in Cedar River Slough before reaching the designated segment. 
 
TDS:  Effective Nov. 11, 2009, the site-specific TDS approach is no longer applicable; instead the new 
chloride and sulfate criteria became applicable. However, the TDS level should be controlled to a level 
such that the narrative criteria stated in IAC 567.61.3 are fulfilled.  
 
Major Facility Acute WET testing Ratio: 
General use criteria protection of Cedar River Slough: Since the annual critical low flows at the outfall 
are all zero, use 100% of effluent for the testing.  
 
To protect the downstream designated stream:  Use 20.9% of effluent and 79.1% of dilution water for the 
testing. The ratio is calculated using ADW design flow and 1.375% of 1Q10 as the ZID.  
 
Final Limits: The limit for the protection of Cedar River Slough is more stringent and thus governs.  
 
5. PERMIT LIMITATIONS: - Based on the Year 2006 Water Quality Standards & 2002 Permit 
Derivation Procedure. 
 
The acute and chronic WLAs are used as the values for input into the current permit derivation procedure.  
Under the 2002 permit derivation procedure, only for toxic parameters is the monitoring frequency 
considered in the calculation of final limits.  The water quality based limits are shown on Pages 1-4 of this 
report.  
 
6. REFERENCES: 
 


1. Wastewater Engineering, Metcalf & Eddy, Third Edition, McGraw-Hill, Inc. 1991, Page 431 
 













		City of Evansdale

		WLA/permit limits for the City of Evansdale’s Mechanical Plant



		SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS 

		Outfall No. 001 



		CBOD5

		Total D.O. (Jan – Dec)

		Ammonia – Nitrogen1

		January

		February

		March

		April

		May

		June

		July

		August

		September

		October

		November

		December

		Bacteria2

		E. coli

		Chloride3

		Sulfate3

		TRC

		Total Nitrogen4

		pH

		SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d)

		Outfall No. 001 





		Toxics

		SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d)

		Outfall No. 001 





		Toxics

		SECTION VI:  WATER QUALITY-BASED PERMIT LIMITS  (Cont’d)

		Outfall No. 001 





		Toxics

		Item #

		Factor or Scenario



		Design Capacity Increase

		1

		Significant Industrial Users (SIU) Contributing New Pollutant of Concern (POC)

		2

		New Process Contributing New Pollutant of Concern (POC)

		Less Stringent Water Quality Based Limits? 

		4

		Outfall Location Change

		5





• Award contract for construction of wastewater treatment improvements by [Insert 19
months from permit issuance date].  April 1, 2019
• Submit progress report by [Insert 27 months from permit issuance date].  December 1,
2019
• Complete construction of wastewater treatment improvements by [Insert 35 months from
permit issuance date].  August 1, 2020.
• Achieve compliance with final E.coli limit by [Insert 36 months from permit issuance date].
September 1, 2020

 
Based on my experience with communities that have recently gotten their new permits and needed
to add disinfection systems, most of them are going the route of UV Disinfection.  There are three
types of UV Disinfection: Horizontal Contact, Vertical Contact, and Non-Contact.  If you would like to
talk with other operators or visit other facilities with different types of disinfection, please let us
know and we can help get you in contact with others.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or want to visit about this. 
 
Thanks,
Heather
 
Heather A. Thomas, PE
Project Manager
 

 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc.
16 E. Main St. Suite #400
Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Office: 641-752-6701, ext 48
Fax: 641-752-2849
  &
5106 Nordic Drive
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Office: 319-266-0258
Fax: 319-266-1515
 
Mobile:  641-485-8240
hthomas@cgaconsultants.com
www.cgaconsultants.com
 
 

From: Chris Schares [mailto:publicworks@cityofevansdale.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2017 7:38 AM
To: Heather Thomas <HThomas@cgaconsultants.com>; Chris Schares

mailto:hthomas@cgaconsultants.com
http://www.cgaconsultants.com/


<publicworksdirector@mediacombb.net>
Cc: Jerry Shoff <JShoff@cgaconsultants.com>
Subject: Re: Evansdale Wastewater Permit
 

As soon as I receive the E-mail I will forward it to you..

 

CHRIS SCHARES

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

EVANSDALE, IOWA

PH.319.232.6683

FAX.319.232.1586

From: Heather Thomas <HThomas@cgaconsultants.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2017 4:54:50 PM
To: Chris Schares
Cc: Jerry Shoff
Subject: Evansdale Wastewater Permit
 
Chris,
 
You mentioned today the City had gotten a letter from the DNR with a compliance schedule in it.  I'm
guessing that it is a document related to the NPDES permit for the wastewater treatment.  I pulled the
latest from the DNR website and it just shows the last one, which is the one that expired in 2006.  The
DNR has been really behind in getting the new permits issued.  Generally, once it sends what is called a
draft permit to the City, it takes about a week before they post that online.
 
One thing to pay close attention to is if there is a comment period associated with the compliance
schedule.  If there is, we may want to review it sooner than later because generally its about a 30 day
+/- window.  If you want me to take a look at it, I'd be happy too if you want to email it to me.
 
Also, I touched base with Aaron with Municipal today to see when they will have their reports done, I'll
let you know as soon as I hear back from him.
 
Thanks,
Heather
 
Cell 641-485-8240

mailto:HThomas@cgaconsultants.com


Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-2- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

RESOLUTION 6109 
 

Resolution authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with Cedar 
Falls Lutheran Home and fixing a date for a hearing on the proposed issuance of 
revenue bonds or notes 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Evansdale, State of Iowa (the “City” or “Issuer”), is a City 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 419 of the Code of Iowa, as amended 
(the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds or notes for the purpose of financing the cost of acquiring, by 
construction or purchase, land, buildings, improvements and equipment, or any interest therein 
suitable for the use of any facility for an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(a) of the Code (a “Tax Exempt Organization”) or to retire any existing indebtedness on a 
facility for a Tax Exempt Organization; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Issuer has been requested by Cedar Falls Lutheran Home (the 
“Borrower”), a Tax Exempt Organization, to issue revenue bonds or notes, in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000 (the “Bonds”), in one or more series, pursuant to the 
Act, and to loan said amount to the Borrower for the purposes of: (1) refunding the Issuer’s 
outstanding Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Cedar Falls Lutheran Home Project), Series 
2010 (the “Prior Bonds”), originally issued in the principal amount of $8,265,000, the proceeds 
of which were used to (a) finance the costs of the acquisition, construction, equipping, improving 
and/or furnishing of (i) an addition to connect the Borrower’s existing nursing home facility, 
independent living facility and assisted living facility (the “Existing Facilities”), including a new 
main entrance, business offices, dining areas, salon, lounge and other common areas, (ii) a 
parking lot and related land improvements and (iii) roof improvements to the nursing home 
facility, the existing wellness/activities center and other improvements to the Existing Facilities, 
all located on the Borrower’s campus at 7511 University Avenue, Cedar Falls, Iowa; (b) refund 
the Issuer’s previous issue of its $5,000,000 Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Cedar 
Falls Lutheran Home Project), Series 2005; (c) fund capitalized interest for the Prior Bonds; and 
(d) pay the costs of issuance and certain other costs associated with the issuance of the Prior 
Bonds pursuant to the Act, and (2) financing the costs of issuance and certain other costs 
associated with the issuance of the Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is proposed to finance the foregoing through the issuance of the Bonds 
and to loan the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to the Borrower under a loan agreement 
between the Issuer and the Borrower (the “Loan Agreement”), the obligations of which will be 
sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as and when the 
same shall be due and payable; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bonds, if issued, shall be limited obligations of the Issuer, and shall not 
constitute nor give rise to a pecuniary liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general credit 
or taxing powers, and the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be 
payable solely out of the revenues derived from the Loan Agreement; and 
 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-3- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 WHEREAS, before the Bonds may be issued, it is necessary to conduct a public hearing 
on the proposal to issue the Bonds, all as required and provided for by Section 419.9 of the Act 
and Section 147(f) of the Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Agreement in the form and with the contents set forth in 
Exhibit A attached hereto, has been presented to the Issuer under the terms of which the Issuer 
agrees, subject to the provisions of such Agreement, to pursue proceedings necessary under the 
Act to issue the Bonds for such purpose;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the Issuer, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Memorandum of Agreement in the form and with the contents set 
forth in Exhibit A attached hereto is hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to 
execute said Memorandum of Agreement and the City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest the 
same and to affix the seal of the Issuer thereto; said Memorandum of Agreement, which 
constitutes and is hereby made a part of this Resolution, to be in substantially the form, text and 
containing the provisions set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
 Section 2. Officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized to take such further action as 
may be necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of the Memorandum of Agreement. 
 
 Section 3. This Council shall meet at 6:00 o’clock p.m. on September 5, 2017, in the 
City Hall, 123 N. Evans Road, Evansdale, Iowa, at which time and place any resident or property 
owner of the Issuer may present oral or written objections on the proposal to issue the Bonds 
referred to in the preamble hereof. 
 
 Section 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to give notice of intention to issue the 
Bonds, setting forth the amount and purpose thereof, the time when and place where the hearing 
will be held, by publication at least once not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for 
the hearing, in a newspaper published and having a general circulation within the City.  The 
notice shall be in substantially the following form: 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-4- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE REVENUE BONDS OR NOTES 
(CEDAR FALLS LUTHERAN HOME PROJECT) 

 
 The City Council of Evansdale, Iowa, (the “Issuer”) will meet on September 5, 2017, at 
6:00 o’clock p.m., in the City Hall, 123 North Evans Road, Evansdale, Iowa, for the purpose of 
conducting a public hearing on the proposal to issue revenue bonds or notes of the Issuer, in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000 (the “Bonds”), in one or more series, and to 
loan said amount to Cedar Falls Lutheran Home (the “Borrower”), for the purposes of: (1) 
refunding the Issuer’s outstanding Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Cedar Falls Lutheran 
Home Project), Series 2010, originally issued in the principal amount of $8,265,000 (the “Prior 
Bonds”), the proceeds of which were used to (a) finance the costs of the acquisition, 
construction, equipping, improving and/or furnishing of (i) an addition to connect the Borrower’s 
existing nursing home facility, independent living facility and assisted living facility (the 
“Existing Facilities”), including a new main entrance, business offices, dining areas, salon, 
lounge and other common areas, (ii) a parking lot and related land improvements and (iii) roof 
improvements to the nursing home facility, the existing wellness/activities center and other 
improvements to the Existing Facilities, all located on the Borrower’s campus at 7511 University 
Avenue, Cedar Falls, Iowa; (b) refund the Issuer’s previous issue of its $5,000,000 Adjustable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Cedar Falls Lutheran Home Project), Series 2005; (c) fund 
capitalized interest for the Prior Bonds; and (d) pay the costs of issuance and certain other costs 
associated with the issuance of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act, and (2) financing the costs of 
issuance and certain other costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.  The Borrower will 
own and operate the facilities refinanced by the Bonds. 
 
 The Bonds, when issued, will be limited obligations and will not constitute general 
obligations of the Issuer nor will they be payable in any manner by taxation, but the Bonds will 
be payable solely and only from amounts received by the Issuer under a Loan Agreement 
between the Issuer and the Borrower, the obligations of which will be sufficient to pay the 
principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds as and when the same 
shall become due. 
 
 At the time and place stated above, oral or written objections from any resident or 
property owner of the Issuer may be presented.  At such meeting or any adjournment thereof, the 
Issuer shall adopt a resolution determining whether or not to proceed with the issuance of the 
Bonds. Written comments may also be submitted to the Issuer at the Evansdale City Hall, 123 
North Evans Road, Evansdale, Iowa 50707.  Written comments must be received by the above 
hearing date. 
 
 By order of the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa. 
 
      City Clerk 
  



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-5- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 
  
 Section 5. All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict. 
 
 Passed and approved on August 1, 2017. 
 
  
 
           
      ____________________________________                                                                       
      Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

* * * Other Business * * * 
 
 On motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 
 
  
 
        
 
 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-6- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK    SS: 
CITY OF EVANSDALE   
 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and acting City 
Clerk of the aforementioned City and that as such I have in my possession or have access to the 
complete official records of said City and of its City Council and officers; and that I have 
carefully compared the transcript hereto attached with the aforesaid official records and that said 
transcript hereto attached is a true, correct and complete copy of all of the official records 
showing the action taken by the City Council of said City to authorize the execution of a 
Memorandum of Agreement by and between Cedar Falls Lutheran Home and said City and to set 
a public hearing date as set forth therein. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City hereto affixed this _____ day of August, 
2017. 
 
     
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 
 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-7- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK    SS: 
CITY OF EVANSDALE   
 
 
 I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the aforementioned City, do hereby certify that I caused 
a notice of which the printed slip annexed to the publisher’s affidavit hereto attached, is a true 
and complete copy, to be published in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, 
published in said City and of general circulation in such City as evidenced by the said affidavit. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the aforementioned City hereto affixed this ____ day 
of August, 2017. 
 
  
     
 
 
     
 _______________________________________ 
          City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
 
 
(PLEASE NOTE: This certificate must be dated as of or subsequent to the actual date of 
publication of the notice.) 
 
 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-A1- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 

EXHIBIT A 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT is between the City of Evansdale, Iowa, (the 
“Issuer”) and Cedar Falls Lutheran Home (the “Borrower”). 
 
 1. Preliminary Statement.  Among the matters of mutual inducement which have 
resulted in the execution of this Agreement are the following: 
 

 (a) The Issuer is authorized by Chapter 419 of the Code of Iowa, as amended 
(the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds or notes for the purpose of financing the cost of 
acquiring, by construction or purchase, land, buildings, improvements and equipment, or 
any interest therein suitable for the use of any facility for an organization described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) which is exempt from 
federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Code (a “Tax Exempt Organization”) or to 
retire any existing indebtedness on a facility for a Tax Exempt Organization. 

 
 (b) The Borrower wishes to obtain satisfactory assurance from the Issuer that, 
subject to the public hearing required by the Act and Section 147(f) of the Code, such 
notes will be issued by the Issuer for the purposes of: (1) refunding the Issuer’s 
outstanding Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Cedar Falls Lutheran Home Project), 
Series 2010, originally issued in the principal amount of $8,265,000 (the “Prior Bonds”), 
the proceeds of which were used to (a) finance the costs of the acquisition, construction, 
equipping, improving and/or furnishing of (i) an addition to connect the Borrower’s 
existing nursing home facility, independent living facility and assisted living facility (the 
“Existing Facilities”), including a new main entrance, business offices, dining areas, 
salon, lounge and other common areas, (ii) a parking lot and related land improvements 
and (iii) roof improvements to the nursing home facility, the existing wellness/activities 
center and other improvements to the Existing Facilities, all located on the Borrower’s 
campus at 7511 University Avenue, Cedar Falls, Iowa; (b) refund the Issuer’s previous 
issue of its $5,000,000 Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Cedar Falls Lutheran 
Home Project), Series 2005; (c) fund capitalized interest for the Prior Bonds; and (d) pay 
the costs of issuance and certain other costs associated with the issuance of the Prior 
Bonds pursuant to the Act, and (2) financing the costs of issuance and certain other costs 
associated with the issuance of the Bonds (as hereinafter defined).   

 
 2. Undertakings on the Part of the Issuer. 
 
  (a) The Issuer will begin the proceedings necessary to authorize the issuance 

of such revenue bonds or notes, in one or more series, in an aggregate principal amount 
not to exceed $7,000,000 (the “Bonds”). 

 
  (b) Subject to due compliance with all requirements of law, including the 

provisions of and the public hearing required by the Act, it will cooperate with the 
Borrower in the issuance and sale of such Bonds, and the proceeds from the issuance of 
such Bonds shall be loaned to the Borrower upon terms sufficient to pay the principal of 
and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Bonds, as and when the same shall 
become due. 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-A2- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 

  (c) The Issuer shall determine when, in what amount, and if the Bonds may be 
issued without causing the Issuer to lose its qualification as a “qualified small issuer” 
within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code. 

 3. Undertakings on the Part of the Borrower. 
 
  (a) The Borrower will use all reasonable efforts to cooperate with the Issuer 

and comply with the Act and all other provisions of law relating to the issuance and sale 
of such Bonds. 

 
  (b) The Borrower will enter into a Loan Agreement with the Issuer under the 

terms of which the Borrower will obligate itself to pay to the Issuer sums sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Bonds as and when 
the same shall become due and payable. 

 
  (c) It will take such further action and adopt such further proceedings as may 

be required to implement its aforesaid undertaking or as it may deem appropriate in 
pursuance thereof. 
 

 
 4. General Provisions. 
 
  (a) All commitments on the part of the Issuer and the Borrower herein are 

subject to the condition that by December 31, 2017 (or such other date as shall be 
mutually agreed to) the Issuer and the Borrower shall have agreed to mutually acceptable 
terms relating to the issuance and sale of such Bonds, and mutually acceptable terms and 
conditions of the documents referred to in paragraphs 2 and 3 hereof. 

 
  (b) Whether or not the events set forth in (a) of this paragraph take place 

within the time set forth or any extension thereof, the Borrower agrees (i) to pay all 
applicable review fees required by the Issuer at the times and in the amounts requested 
and (ii) to reimburse the Issuer for all reasonable and necessary direct out-of-pocket 
expenses which the Issuer may incur, including but not limited to, legal fees, 
administrative costs, printing and publication costs and filing fees arising from the 
execution of this Agreement and the performance, or preparation to perform by the 
Issuer, of its obligations hereunder, or done at the request of the Borrower. 

 
  (c) All commitments of the Issuer hereunder are further subject to the 

conditions that the Issuer shall in no event incur any liability for any act or omission 
hereunder, and that such Bonds described herein shall not constitute an indebtedness of 
the Issuer within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision and shall not 
constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general 
credit or taxing powers.  The execution of this Memorandum of Agreement by the Issuer 
is not intended to nor does it create a binding commitment on the part of the Issuer to 
proceed with the issuance of the Bonds.  It is further understood that the issuance of the 
Bonds is subject to further review by the City Council of the Issuer and compliance with 
all provisions of the Act and the Code, including the holding of a public hearing with 
respect thereto. 

 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-A3- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 

  (d) Preparation of all resolutions, agreements, instruments, certificates or 
other documents in final form for adoption and execution shall be the sole responsibility 
of Bond Counsel. 

 
  (e) Counsel for the Issuer shall timely certify, if requested by Bond Counsel, 

the non-existence of threatened litigation, pending litigation or claims with respect to the 
proposed Bond issue.  All other attorneys’ opinions or certificates with respect to issuing 
authority, non-arbitrage, regularity of proceedings, or otherwise shall be the 
responsibility of Borrower Counsel or Bond Counsel. 

 
  (f) In the event Sections 145 and 146 of the Code, as amended, restrict the 

aggregate principal amount of Bonds for Tax-Exempt Organizations which the Issuer 
may issue in any calendar year, the Issuer may, in its discretion, rescind its commitments 
under Paragraph 2 hereof, without liability on the part of the Issuer. 

 
  (g) All commitments of the Issuer hereunder are further subject to the 

condition that the Bonds will be issued only if the Issuer determines that such issuance 
will not cause the Issuer to lose its qualification as a “qualified small issuer” within the 
meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code in any year. 



Evansdale/ Memo Agt & Hrg (Lutheran Home) 
4849-8508-2956\3 
 

-A4- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

4849-8508-2956\3 

 

 
 
Dated this ___ day of August, 2017. 

 
       CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA 
 
 
     
       By _________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 

CEDAR FALLS LUTHERAN HOME 
 
 
 
       By _________________________________ 
        Authorized Representative 









 
6301 Deramus Ave Kansas City MO 64120  •  816-741-0282  •  FAX 816-587-0282  •  www.pathfindersystems.net   •   mail@pathfindersystems.net 
524 Apollo Drive Suite 40 Lino Lakes MN 55014   •  651-490-1183  • FAX 651-490-3428  • 651-503-6589   •   markhiestand@pathfindersystems.net 

 
July 20, 2017 
 
Blazek Corporation 
2005 Union Ave 
Lawler, IA 52154 
Phone: 563-238-7150 
E-mail: blazekcorp@msn.com  
 
Attention: Gene Blazek 
 
Subject: Blower Repair Evaluation  (Job #17522) 
 
We are pleased to quote the following blower repair. 
 
 Roots 68-URAI  
 Serial number: Not Readable 

• Unit cannot be rebuilt 
 

New Unit List Price: $ 4,625  Lead time from the factory is 12 weeks A.R.O. 
 
** Please advise if you would like the unrepairable unit shipped back or if you would like us to scrap it here. ** 
 
Option:  Pathfinder currently has (1) 68-URAI, which is available for REMAN. It is a very solid unit, which has 
already been torn down, but is not yet rebuilt. It is available for $ 3,469. It will be rebuilt to factory 
specifications, painted and come with a 1-year warranty from Pathfinder. This REMAN unit would have a  
2 to 3-week lead time, A.R.O. 
 
Note: The quoted prices are good for 60 days. Quote prices do not include outbound freight or taxes. 
Pathfinder Systems Standard Terms and Condition apply. F.O.B. Factory 
 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions. Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Nicole Nelson, on behalf of John Larson 
Pathfinder Systems, Inc.  
816-741-0282 
www.pathfindersystems.net 

mailto:blazekcorp@msn.com
http://www.pathfindersystems.net/






ORDINANCE 654 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY AMENDING 
PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO WEEDS 
 

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 

SECTION 1.  SECTION MODIFIED.  Section 52.01 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof:   

  
52.01 SUBSECTION 1 through 4.  DEFINITIONS.  For use in the chapter, the following terms 
are defined:  
1. “Hazard” means any weeds, grasses, or other herbaceous vegetation which interferes with 
any sidewalk or the traveled portion of any roadway or alley or with visibility at any intersection, 
or traffic control light or sign or which constitutes a health, safety, or fire hazard or otherwise 
endangers life or property. 
2. “Nuisance” means any weeds which, due to the manner of their growth and height, cause 
an annoyance to the general public, including noxious weeds as defined in the Code of Iowa. 
3. “Season” means the months of May through September in a single calendar year. 
4. “Weeds” includes all herbaceous vegetation that is not maintained and cared for under 
normal horticultural practices. 
 

SECTION 2. SUBSECTION MODIFIED. Section 52.04 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof:   

   
52.04    NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER.  All notices served under this Chapter 
must be served on the property owner by ordinary mail. The first notice issued in respect 
of a given property within a season shall demand that weeds, vines or bushes in violation 
of Section 52.02 be abated within five (5) days from the date notice was served. At least 
five (5) days before the Street Department Superintendent cuts or destroys any weeds, 
vines, or bushes, as provided in Section 52.02, notice shall be served on the property 
owner by ordinary mail notifying such property owner. The notice must state that unless 
such weeds, vines, or bushes are cut or destroyed before the date stated in the notice, the 
City will cut or destroy such weeds, vines, or bushes and assess the cost thereof to the 
owner of the lot or parcel of ground. Subsequent notices issued in respect of the same 
property within a single season shall demand abatement of the violation within three (3) 
days from the date of the notice. Failure of the property owner to abate the violation 
within the time frame set forth herein may result in the City cutting or destroying such 
weeds, vines, or bushes and assessing the cost thereof to the owner of the lot or parcel of 
ground. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional.   

 
SECTION 4.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval, and publication as provided by law.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 
________ DAY OF _____________ 2017.      



                                                                                                First Reading:  07/05/2017   
                                                                                            Second Reading: 07/18/2017 
                                                                                               Third Reading:     
 
 ATTEST: 
 
              _______________________________                
  Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 655 on the _____ day of ___________ 
2017.  

_____________________________  
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 655 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, BY AMENDING 
PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO SIDEWALK REGULATIONS 
 

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 
 

SECTION 1.  SECTION MODIFIED.  Section 136.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof:   

136.02    DEFINITIONS.  For use in this chapter the following terms are defined: 

1. “Broom finish” means a sidewalk finish that is made by sweeping the sidewalk when it is 
hardening.    

2. “Established grade” means that grade established by the City for the particular area in 
which a sidewalk is to be constructed.     

3. “One-course construction” means that the full thickness of the concrete is placed at one 
time, using the same mixture throughout. 

4. “Owner” means the person owning the fee title to property abutting any sidewalk and 
includes any contract purchaser for purposes of notification required herein.  For all other purposes, 
“owner” includes the lessee, if any.   

5. “Portland cement” means any type of cement except bituminous cement.    

6. “Season” means October through the following April. 

7. “Sidewalk” means all permanent public walks in business, residential or suburban areas. 

8. “Sidewalk improvements” means the construction, reconstruction, repair, replacement, or 
removal, of a public sidewalk and/or the excavating, filling or depositing of material in the public 
right-of-way in connection therewith.   
9. “Wood float finish” means a sidewalk finish that is made by smoothing the surface of the 
sidewalk with a wooden trowel. 
 

SECTION 2. SUBSECTION MODIFIED. Section 136.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Evansdale, Iowa, is repealed and the following adopted in lieu thereof:   

   
136.03    REMOVAL OF SNOW, ICE, AND ACCUMULATIONS.  It is the 
responsibility of the abutting property owners to remove snow, ice, and accumulations 
promptly from City sidewalks.  If an property owner does not remove snow, ice, or 
accumulations as required by this section, within a reasonable time it is the responsibility 
of the Street Department to remove any snow, ice, and accumulations from sidewalks. 
At least three (3) days before the Public Work Director directs snow, ice, or accumulation 
be removed by the City, notice shall be served on the owner responsible for such removal 
by ordinary mail notifying such owner that unless the snow, ice, and accumulations are 
removed before the date stated in the notice, the City will remove such snow, ice, and 
accumulations and assess the cost thereof to the owner. The City may assess City may 
do so and assess the costs against the property owner for collection in the same manner 
as a property tax.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 364.12[2b & e]) 
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance 



shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
ordinance as a whole or any section, provision, or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional.   

 
SECTION 4.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval, and publication as provided by law.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 
________ DAY OF _____________ 2017.      

                                                                                                First Reading:  07/05/2017   
                                                                                            Second Reading: 07/18/2017  
                                                                                               Third Reading:     
 
 ATTEST: 
 
              _______________________________                
  Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 656 on the _____ day of ___________ 
2017.  

 
_____________________________  
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 656 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
EVANSDALE, IOWA, BY ADDING CHAPTER 48 FIREWORKS 

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Evansdale, Iowa: 

SECTION 1.  NEW SECTION.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Evansdale, Iowa, 2017, is 
amended by adding Chapter 48, which is hereby adopted to read as follows: 

 
FIREWORKS 

 
48.01  Definitions 48.05 Enforcement 
48.02  When Allowed 48.06 Penalty for Violation 
48.03  Where Allowed  
48.04  Sale of Fireworks 

48.07 Exceptions 

  
48.01    DEFINITIONS.  For use in the chapter, the following terms are defined:  

1. “Consumer Fireworks” means first-class consumer fireworks and second-class consumer 
fireworks as those terms are defined in Chapter 100 of the Code of Iowa. “Consumer Fireworks” 
does not include novelties enumerated in chapter 3 of the American Pyrotechnics Association’s 
Standard 87-1 or display fireworks enumerated in chapter 4 of the American Pyrotechnics 
Association’s Standard 87-1. 

2. “Display fireworks” means any explosive composition, or combination of explosive 
substances, or article prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or audible effect by 
combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, and includes fireworks containing any 
explosive or flammable compound, or other device containing any explosive substance. “Display 
fireworks” does not include novelties or consumer fireworks enumerated in chapter 3 of the 
American Pyrotechnics Association’s Standard 87-1. 
3. “Novelties” means all novelties enumerated in chapter 3of the American Pyrotechnics 
Association’s Standard 87-1, and that comply with the labeling regulations promulgated by the 
United States Consumer Product Safety Commission. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

48.02    WHEN ALLOWED.   

1. It is unlawful for any person, partnership, or corporation to use or explode any display 
fireworks; provided the City Council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the 
display of display fireworks by municipalities and other organizations or groups of individuals 
approved by the City when the display fireworks will be handled by a competent operator. No 
permit shall be granted hereunder unless the operator or sponsoring organization has filed with 
the City evidence of insurance in the following amounts: 

  Personal Injury:  $250,000 per person 

  Property Damage: $50,000 

  Total Exposure:  $1,000,000 

2. It is unlawful for any person to use or explode consumer fireworks on days other than 
June 30th through July 4th and December 28th through January 1st of each year, all dates inclusive. 
On such dates, it is unlawful for any person to use or explode consumer fireworks at times other 



than between the hours of 12:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m., except that on the following dates 
consumer fireworks shall not be used at times other than between the hours specified: 

A. Between the hours of 12:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. on July 4th and the Saturdays 
and Sundays immediately preceding and following July 4th. 

B. Between the hours of 12:00 p.m. on December 31st and 12:30 a.m. on the 
immediately following day. 

    (Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

 
48.03    WHERE ALLOWED.  It is unlawful for any person to use consumer fireworks on real property 
other than that person’s real property or on the real property of a person who has consented to the use of 
consumer fireworks on that property. It is unlawful for any person to use or explode consumer fireworks 
on property owned by the City.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

48.04 SALE OF FIREWORKS. 

1. A person shall possess a consumer fireworks seller license issued pursuant to Iowa Code 
Chapter 100 in order to sell consumer fireworks. 

2. A retailer or community group issued a license pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 100 to sell 
consumer fireworks may sell such consumer fireworks only (i) within a district zoned as C-1, C-
2, or C-3, and (ii) on the following dates: 

A. Between June 1 and July 8 and between December 10 and January 3 of each 
year, all dates inclusive, at a permanent building that is in compliance with the Iowa 
Code. 

B. Between June 13 and July 8 each year, both dates inclusive, at a temporary 
structure that meets the requirements of the Iowa Code. 

3. Consumer fireworks shall not be sold to a person who is under 18 years of age. 
(Code of Iowa, Sec. 100.19, Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

48.05 ENFORCEMENT. The Chief of Police or his/her designee is charged with the duty of enforcing 
these provisions.  

48.06 PENALTY FOR VIOLATION. The penalty for violation of this Chapter shall include 
confiscation or destruction of any Consumer fireworks in addition to the following penalties: 

A. A person who uses or explodes display fireworks while the use of such devices is 
prohibited or limited by the City commits a simple misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of 
not less than $250 (two hundred fifty dollars). 

B. A person, firm, partnership, or corporation who sells consumer fireworks to a 
person who is less than 18 years of age commits a simple misdemeanor, punishable by a 
fine of not less than two hundred fifty dollars. A person who is less than 18 years of age 
who purchases consumer fireworks commits a simple misdemeanor, punishable by a fine 
of not less than $250 (two hundred fifty dollars). 
C. A person who uses or explodes consumer fireworks or novelties while the use of 
such devices is prohibited or limited by this ordinance commits a simple misdemeanor, 
punishable by a fine of not less than $250 (two hundred fifty dollars). 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

48.07 EXCEPTIONS. 



1. This section does not prohibit the sale by a resident, dealer, manufacturer, or jobber of 
such fireworks as are not prohibited, or the sale of any kind of fireworks if they are to be shipped 
out of the state, or the sale or use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or for signal 
purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a recognized 
military organization. 

2. This section does not apply to any substance or composition prepared and sold for 
medicinal or fumigation purposes. 

 3. Unless specifically provided otherwise, this section does not apply to novelties. 
(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

SECTION 2.   REPEALER.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 3.   SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.   If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

  

SECTION 4.   WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE EVANSDALE CITY COUNCIL ON THIS 

____ DAY OF _____________ 2017.      
                                                                                                         First Reading:   07/18/17  
                                                                                             Second Reading:  
                                                                                                         Third Reading:   
 
  ATTEST:              
  
 _______________________________                
 Doug Faas, Mayor    DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 
 

 
I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance 656 on the _____ day of ___________, 
2017.  

_____________________________  
DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 657 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA, 
AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF EVANSDALE BY 
REPEALING SECTION 15.04, COMPENSATION, IN CHAPTER 15, 
MAYOR, AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW SECTION 15.04. 

 
BE IT HEREBY ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANSDALE, 
IOWA: 
 
1. That Section 15.04 of Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code of Evansdale is hereby repealed in 

its entirety, effective January 1, 2018. 
 
2. That a new Section 15.04 of Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code of Evansdale, reading as 

follows, shall be adopted effective on January 1, 2018:  
  
 15.04 COMPENSATION.  
 

1. Beginning on January 1, 2018, the compensation of the full-time Mayor shall be 
$49,641 annually, payable bi-weekly in 26 installments of $1,909.27.  Beginning on 
July 1, 2018, the compensation of the full-time Mayor shall be $52,023.77 annually, 
payable bi-weekly in 26 installments of $2,000.92.  For the purpose of this section, 
“Full-time” is defined as working as Mayor forty (40) hours per week except on paid 
holidays and vacation days.   

 
2. The compensation for the part-time Mayor is $10,000 annually, payable bi-weekly in 

26 installments of $384.62.  For the purpose of this section, “part-time” is defined as 
working as Mayor less than forty (40) hours per week.   

 
3. Council shall review the compensation of the Mayor once every two years. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 372.13[8]) 
 
4. This ordinance, after its final passage, approval and publication as provided by law, 

shall be effective on January 1, 2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF _______________ 2017 
       
 First Reading:  
 Second Reading:  
 Third Reading:  
 
 ATTEST:  
 
         
Doug Faas, Mayor  DeAnne Kobliska, City Clerk 






	AGENDA 08-01-17
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	TUESDAY –AUGUST 1, 2017 – 6:00 PM
	EVANSDALE CITY HALL
	AGENDA


	07-18-17 Council Minutes
	Amvet One day liquor license
	Amvets Diagram
	Pront Liquor License
	Casey's 1084 Liquor License
	The Watering Hole Liquor License
	Request-Forever Young Memorial 5K
	08-01-2017 RES OF BILLS
	Sheet1

	DBS&H INV
	CGA INV
	RES 6108 APPROVING 2017 STREET PATCHING-MAINTENANCE PROJ
	RES 6108 APPROVING 2017 STREET PATCHING-MAINTENANCE PROJ-BID TAB
	Evansdale Wastewater Permit
	RES 6109 Proc Set Date and Memo Agt (CF Lutheran Home 2017)-v3
	Mayor
	City Clerk
	City Clerk
	Mayor


	FY18 WATERSHED AGREEMENT
	Request from Public Works - Blazek Quote
	TURF PRO INV
	Asbestos Removal Bid
	ORD 654 WEEDS
	ATTEST:

	ORD 655 SIDEWALKS
	ATTEST:

	ORD 656 FIREWORKS
	ATTEST:

	ORD 657 MAYOR COMPENSATION
	OPEN MEETINGS VIOLATION

	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 


